
    

A few welcoming notes:   
The board’s meeting time is dedicated to its strategic mission and top priorities. • The “consent agenda” has items which have either been discussed 
prior or are highly routine. By not discussing these issues, we are able to spend time on our most important priorities.  • “Public participation” is an 
opportunity to present brief comments or pose questions to the board for consideration or follow-up.  Time limits are 3 minutes for individual speakers if 
fewer than 20 individuals have signed up to speak; 2 minutes’ limit and 5 minutes for groups of 20 signed up; and 1 minute for individual and 3 minutes 
for groups if more than 30 have signed up to speak. Please see Board Policy GP-14 (Governance Process) for the full policy).  The boundaries are 
designed to help keep the strategic meeting focused and in no way limits conversations beyond the board meeting. • Your insights are needed and 
welcomed and the board encourages you to request a meeting with any board member, should you have something to discuss. • If you are interested in 
helping the district’s achievement effort, please talk with any member of the leadership team or call the district office at 719-486-6800.   Opportunities 
abound.  Your participation is highly desired. 

 

District 

Mission: 

LCSD Challenges 

students to reach 

their fullest potential 

through personal, 

engaged and 

rigorous learning in 

the classroom and 

beyond.  

Board 

Priorities: 

Ensure all students 

stay on or above 

grade level each year 

and graduate prepared 

to successfully 

implement a plan for 

college or career. 

Every day, we are 

college or career 

ready. 

Provide all students 

with engaging 

learning 

opportunities. 

Rigor and 

engagement are 

everywhere.  

Create a space that is 

safe, inclusive and 

welcoming for all.  

Diversity and 

culture make us 

better.  

Plan and execute the 

capital and human 

capital investments 

that will make our 

district better. 

We plan for the 

future. 

 

 

Lake County School District Board of Education 

Aug. 11, 2020  5:00 pm  Regular Meeting 

Location: Lake County District Office, 328 West 5th Street-Room 11 & via 

Zoom 

 
1. 5:00 Call to order 

2. 5:01 Pledge of Allegiance 

3. 5:02 Roll Call 

4. 5:03 Public Participation 
Members of the public who wish to address the board on non-agenda items are welcome to do so at this time. Please sign up with 

board secretary. We ask you to please observe the following guidelines: 
 Confine your comments to matters that are germane to the business of the School District.  

 Recognize that students often attend or view our meetings.  Speaker’s remarks, therefore, should be suitable for an audience 
that includes kindergarten through twelfth grade students. 

 Understand that the board cannot discuss specific personnel matters or specific students in a public forum. 

5. 5:15 Consent Agenda 

a. June 9, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes 

b. June 24, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes 

c. July 14, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes 

d. Aug. 4, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes 

e. Employee Status Report 

f. Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) amendment/FCI 

g. Resolution NO. 21-03 Increase in Grants Fund 22-SAFER Grant 

6. 5:16 BEST Update  

7. 5:45 Discussion Item  

a. 5:45 Budget Update—COVID Funds 

b. 6:15 Bright Start and LCSD Lease 

c. 6:45 Preschool Update 

d. 7:00 Administrative Policies  

8. 7:30 Action Items 

a. 7:30 Resolution 21-04 to Define “Actively Engaged in the Educational Process” and 

Student Attendance for the 2020-2021 School Year 

b. 7:40 Bright Start and LCSD Lease  

9. 7:50 Oversight Calendar 

a. District Preparedness-Admin team 

10. 8:30 Superintendent Update 

11. 8:45 Agenda planning 

12. Adjourn 

13. Next Meeting or event:  

a. Aug. 25, 2020 Special Meeting 5:00 pm @ District Office/Zoom 

b. Sept. 8, 2020 Regular Meeting 5:00 pm @ District Office/Zoom 

 

 

 

 

 
Estimated duration of meeting is 2.5 to 3 hours      **Updated 8/10/2020 

 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 

June 9, 2020 

 

Pledge of Allegiance –Director Contreras led the pledge of allegiance. 

Roll Call of Members - The regular meeting of the Board of Directors for Lake County 

School District R-1 was called to order on June 9, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. and was held at the 

District Office and via Zoom.  Directors Contreras, Fiedler, Solomon and Weston and 

Superintendent Wyman was present. Student representative Michaela Main was absent 

and excused.  

 

Preview Agenda- No changes were needed. 

Reading or Energize item- Rod Weston provided a reading. 

Public Participation- NA 

Approval of consent agenda items- It was moved by Director Fiedler to approve 

consent agenda.  Director Solomon seconded the motion;  

 Contreras Fiedler   Solomon Weston 

Aye X X  X X 

Nay      

Absent      

      

      

      

motion carried 4-0. 

 



June 9, 2020 

Page 2 

Action Items- It was moved by Director Fiedler to appoint Crystal Flores to the board.  

Director Weston seconded the motion; There was a discussion of the struggles of doing 

the meetings over Zoom, technology issues and the hopes of having a more outlined 

procedure if we have to appoint another board member in the future. Director Weston 

then experienced technology issues and we waited on him to come in to the board room 

to complete the vote,  

 Contreras Fiedler   Solomon Weston 

Aye X X  X X 

Nay      

Absent      

      

      

      

motion carried 4-0. 

Tara Espinosa, a notary, was in attendance and administered the Oath of Office and 

swore Crystal Flores in.  

Action Item-It was moved by Director Fiedler to nominate Ellie Solomon as Vice 

President.  Director Weston seconded the motion;  

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X  X 

Nay      

Absent      

Abstain     X  

      

      

motion carried 4-0-0-1. 

It was moved by Director Fiedler to nominate Rod Weston as the Secretary for the board.  

Director Fiedler seconded the motion;  

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X X  

Nay      

Absent      

Abstain     X 

      

      

      



June 9, 2020 

Page 3 

motion carried 4-0-0-1. 

BEST Update- Colleen Kaneda gave an update on the BEST project. Director Weston 

stated for record that he was disappointed that we will not have classrooms variable size 

availability and that his input felt unheard. Director Fiedler stated that he had taken 

Director Weston’s concerns to the DAG team and he felt that the DAG and executive 

team have followed the rules and guidelines from the BEST project. Director Solomon 

spoke of being glad we were able to add the 4th classroom. Director Contreras also spoke 

on that she was grateful that we had done the process and had included other stakeholders 

in the process.  

National Board Certification- Karl Remsen spoke to the board on the National Board 

Certification and the 14 staff who are interested in the district and how that will look over 

the next two years. Karl and Heather Moutoux will led the process as they are already 

certified. He is asking that the board support the $3,000 of our professional development 

budget to help with the training that they are planning to do.  

Oversight Calendar-The Master Plan was discussed. Policies SSG-1 through SSG-9 

were looked at and discussed. Revisions will be brought to the board at the next regular 

meeting.  

There was no student representative present so no report was made.  

Discussion Items-The board retreat in July was discussed and will be July 8th. Bethany 

and Eudelia spoke of a draft agenda. Wendy, Paul and Bunny have been working on all 

the Administrative Policies with CASB and are hopeful to bring them to you all at the 

next meeting. Eudelia led a discussion on the current events and the social justice going 

on around the country. There was a discussion about the SRO (School Recourse Officer) 



June 9, 2020 

Page 4 

and what makes a good one. Mike Vagher was present and spoke to the board about the 

SRO program and how it has evolved and the importance it plays in our schools.  

Superintendent Update- Superintendent Wyman gave an update that included and 

update on the budget that was passed by The House of Representatives and that is was 

close to what her and Paul had anticipated and that they will continue to work on a 

budget.  

Board Reports- Director Flores will attend the BOCES meeting as the new 

representative for now. Director Fiedler spoke on the progress at West Park. Director. 

Director Weston reported that there were no new meetings so he had no report.  

Agenda planning-   

Ellie Solomon will do the reading/energizer for the August meeting. The meeting on June 

30th will be at 5:00 pm.  

Meeting was debriefed and it was moved by Director Solomon to adjourn the meeting. 

Director Flores seconded the motion; motion carried.  

Meeting adjourned at 8:49 pm.  

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 

Rod Weston, Secretary 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Eudelia Contreras, President 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MINUTES 

Special Meeting 

June 24, 2020 

 

Pledge of Allegiance –Director Contreras led the pledge of allegiance. 

 

Roll Call of Members - The special meeting of the Board of Directors for Lake County 

School District R-1 was called to order on June 24, 2020 at 4:06 p.m. and was held at the 

District Office.  Directors Contreras (via Zoom), Fiedler (via Zoom), Flores, Solomon 

(via Zoom) and Weston (via Zoom) and Superintendent Wyman were present.  

 

Action Items- It was moved by Director Solomon to approve the Master Agreement 

between Lake County School District and Lake County Education Association and the 

MOU for the 2020-2021 School year. Director Flores seconded the motion;  

 

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X X X 

Nay      

Absent      

      

      

      

motion carried 5-0. 

 

It was moved by Director Solomon to adjourn the meeting. Director Flores seconded the 

motion; motion carried.  



June 24, 2020 

Page 2 

Meeting adjourned at 4:28 pm.  

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

 

Rod Weston, Secretary 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Eudelia Contreras, President 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MINUTES 

Special Meeting 

July 14, 2020 

 

Pledge of Allegiance –Director Contreras led the pledge of allegiance. 

Roll Call of Members - The special meeting of the Board of Directors for Lake County 

School District R-1 was called to order on July 14, 2020 at 2:35 p.m. and was held at the 

District Office.  Directors Contreras (via Zoom), Fiedler (via Zoom), Flores, Solomon 

(via Zoom) and Superintendent Massey were present. Director Weston was absent and 

excused.  

 

Action Items- It was moved by Director Fiedler to approve the guiding principles for 

COVID for the 2020-2021 school year. Director Solomon seconded the motion; there 

was discussion about wording in paragraph one and three. Slight changes were made and 

will be reflected in the final copy that will go out to staff and the community.  

 

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X X  

Nay      

Absent     X 

      

      

      

motion carried 4-0. 

 



July 14, 2020 

Page 2 

It was moved by Director Solomon to adjourn the meeting. Director Fiedler seconded the 

motion; motion carried.  

Meeting adjourned at 2:50 pm.  

ATTEST: 

 _______________________________________ 

Rod Weston, Secretary 

______________________________________ 

Eudelia Contreras, President 



 

SCHOOL BOARD MINUTES 

Special Meeting 

Aug. 4, 2020 

 

Pledge of Allegiance –Director Contreras led the pledge of allegiance. 

Roll Call of Members - The special meeting of the Board of Directors for Lake County 

School District R-1 was called to order on Aug. 4, 2020 at 5:33 p.m. and was held at the 

District Office.  Directors Contreras, Fiedler (via Zoom), Flores, Solomon, Weston and 

Superintendent Massey were present.  

 

Discussion Item- Superintendent Massey went over the work that the district has been 

working on in regards to the start of school and presented updated plans from the 

buildings.  

 

Public Participation- Members of the public spoke to the board which included: Roxie 

Aldaz, Karla Alder, Becca Katz, Karla Alder, Becca Katz Danny O’Brien, Amy King, 

Cody Jump, Kate Bartlett, Luke Finken, Anahise Shoukas,  

Kristen Sparkman, Becca Voit and Sara Mudge all in regards to the start of year plans.  

 

Action Items- It was moved by Director Solomon to approve the return to school plan 

presented by Dr. Massey and to delay the start of school for two weeks. Director Weston 

seconded the motion; there was a discussion and after more information, Director 



Aug. 4, 2020 

Page 2 

Solomon withdrew her second and she proposed to make new motions that would make 

separate motions.  

 

It was moved by Director Solomon to approve the return to delay the start of school for 

two weeks. Director Weston seconded the motion; 

 

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X X X 

Nay      

Absent      

      

      

      

motion carried 5-0. 

 

It was moved by Director Solomon to approve the two pathways of learning presented by 

Superintendent Massey (Two path ways are an Online option and a Color Band 

Pathway). Director Weston seconded the motion; 

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X X X 

Nay      

Absent      

      

      

      

motion carried 5-0. 

 

It was moved by Director Weston to approve starting the Color Pathway in “Yellow” for 

K-12 for the first 4 weeks and adjust based on thresholds. Director Flores seconded the 

motion; 

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X  X 

Nay      



Aug. 4, 2020 

Page 3 

Absent      

Abstain    X  

      

      

motion carried 4-0-0-1. 

After the vote was called, Director Flores moved to reconsider her vote. Director 

Solomon second all members voted yes and the discussion continued.  

The motion was again brought forward; Director Weston moved to approve starting the 

Color Pathway in “Yellow” for K-12 for the first 4 weeks and adjust based on thresholds. 

Director Flores seconded the motion; 

 Contreras Fiedler  Flores Solomon Weston 

Aye X X X  X 

Nay      

Absent      

Abstain    X  

      

      

 

motion carried 4-0-0-1. 

It was moved by Director Solomon to adjourn the meeting. Director Flores seconded the 

motion; motion carried.  

Meeting adjourned at 8:31 pm.  

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Rod Weston, Secretary 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Eudelia Contreras, President 



Lake County School District R-1
Employee Status Report

August 11, 2020

8/7/2020

Name     Assignment    Degree        License- Endorsement Experience
Barrett, Aaron 4th Grade Teacher MA - Sports Coaching Applied - Alternative 0 Years
Tracy, Kristen 2nd Grade Teacher MA - Curriculum & Instruction CO - Elementary Educaton 3 Years

Name Current Assignment Transfer Assignment Location Effective

Duncan, Allison 2nd Grae Teacher WPE 09/01/020

Eudelia Contreras, President Rod Weston Secretary

Certified Staff

Recommended for Hire

Transfers

General Leave of Absence



Lake County School District R-1
Employee Status Report

August 11, 2020

8/7/2020

Brassington, Robert Special Education Paraprofessional LCIS
Evans, Heather School Social Worker WPE
Luna, Kate Bilingual Special Education Paraprofessional LCIS
Martin, William 3-6 Instructional Paraprofessional LCIS
Parocha, Megan 7-12 School Social Worker LCHS
Radilla, Stephanie Attendance Specialist LCHS

Name Current Assignment Transfer Assignment

Effective

__________________________________
Eudelia Contreras, President

___________________________________
_   Rod Weston, Secretary

Transfers

Support Staff/Classified

Recommended for Hire

Resignations/Terminations



Lake County School District R-1
Employee Status Report

August 11, 2020

8/7/2020

School Psychologist 2020-2021 Year

Substitute Teachers District
Pre-K SubstituteTeachers The Center

MS Head Volleyball
MS Asst. Volleyball
MS Head Boys Soccer
MS Asst. Boys Basketball
MS Head Girls Basketball
MS Asst. Track & Field

Coaches/Athletics

Classified/Support Staff

Certified/Staff



 

 

 

August 5, 2020 

 
CONTRACT COVER LETTER 

 
Attention:  Paul Anderson, CFO 
Lake County School District 
328 West 5th St. 
Leadville, CO 80461 
 
 
Project: West Park Elementary School Replacement Project 
Contractor: FCI Constructors, Inc. 
Address: 3070 I-70 Business Loop, Building A, Grand Junction CO 81504 
Contract Form/Type: Legal Reviewed, Modified AIA A132-2009 & AIA A201-2007 
Signature Needed: Paul Anderson, CFO (already signed) 
 
Scope Summary: Construction Manager/General Contractor for West Park Elementary 
 
Cost for Services: Total Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) amendment = $26,252,032  
 
GMP includes original Preconstruction Fees and previous GMP amendments to allow for early 
release of subcontractors per design package phasing. 
 
Proposed Schedule: Construction:  May 4, 2020 – July 28, 2021 
 
Sincerely, 
Dynamic Program Management 
 
Colleen Kaneda 
Principal, Senior Project Manager 
 

















































































 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  21-03 

 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Board of Education of Lake County School District R-1 

authorizes an increase in the 2020-202 Funds as follows: 

 

     Grants Fund 22 

     SAFER Grant- School access for emergency response  

 (new acquisition)         $398,671.00 

 

      

 

      

 

 

        Total  $       $398,671.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Rod Weston, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Eudelia Contreras, President 

 

 

 

Dated: August 11, 2020 



   

West Park Elementary Project 
Progress Update #8 

August 11th, 2020 
 

Overall Schedule 
- Design: Fall 2019 – Summer 2020 
- Construction: Summer 2020 – Fall/Winter 2021 

 

Overall Budget 

 

Team 
- Owners Rep – Dynamic Program Management (DPM) 
- Architect – Hord Coplan Macht (HCM) 
- Construction Contractor – FCI Constructors 
- Commissioning Agent – PCD Engineering 
- Environmental Consultant – Weecycle Environmental 

- Abatement Contractor - Earth Services & Abatement 

- Construction Material & 3rd Party Testing – Ground Engineering 
- Traffic Consultant – McDowell Engineering 
- Furniture, Fixtures, & Equipment Procurement – In Procurement 

 
Recently Completed 
 

- Design 
o 6/23/2020 – Foundation Permit Released 
o Mechanical Engineer incorporated an HVAC design into the project 

that does not recirculate air through the system, fresh air is brought in 
from outside. This system helps avoid recirculating any moisture 
droplets that could potentially carry a virus. 

 
- Budget 

o 7/13/2020 - CC-06 #8 submitted for payment 
o 7/29/2020 – FCI’s GMP executed 
o 8/5/2020 - CC-06 #9 submitted for payment 

 
- Construction 

o FCI roughed in dry utilities 
o FCI prepped for curb and gutter  
o FCI formed and poured walls for Areas A & B 

 

Total Budget Amount Committed Spent to Date Est. Local Expenditures 
$34,676,114 $28,621,945 $3,219,582 $29,659 



  West Park Elementary Project 

  Progress Update #8 

  August 11th, 2020 

 

 Page 2 of 3  

 

In Progress 
 

- Procurement 
o FF&E – facilitated by HCM & DPM, proposals due 8/14/2020 

 
- Design 

o State Building Permit Review 
o Coordination with utility providers and local AHJs 

 
- Budget 

o Exec Comm reviewing Add Alternates 
 

- Construction 
o Workers following County and State COVID-19 Requirements to 

maintain a safe site 
o Site curb and gutter form and pour 
o Backfilling foundations 
o Underground plumbing and electrical 

 

Upcoming 
 

- Procurement 
o Technology – facilitated by LCSD & DPM  
o Moving Company – facilitated by DPM (for summer 2021) 

 
- Design 

o Decision from BEST Board regarding additional PK classroom space 
o Building Permit Release 

 
- Abatement 

o Abatement of existing West Park Elementary School Facility to occur 
summer 2021 

 
PHOTOS  

On following page 



  West Park Elementary Project 

  Progress Update #8 

  August 11th, 2020 

 

 Page 3 of 3  

 

 
7/7/2020 – Foundation Formwork 

 
7/7/20 – Site Work 



 

 

 

Lake County School District 
328 West 5th Street, Leadville, Colorado 80461   719.486.6800 
www.lakecountyschools.net 
 
Lake County High School       Lake County Intermediate School  West Park Elementary School  The Center Early Childhood Programs 
1000 West 4th Street  1000 West 6th Street   130 West 12th Street   315 West 6th Street 
Leadville, Colorado 80461 Leadville, Colorado 80461  Leadville, Colorado 80461  Leadville, Colorado 80461 
719.486.6950  719.486.6830   719.486.6890   719.486.6920 

 

TOPIC: BUDGET UPDATE – COVID FUNDS 

 ESSER and Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) Expenditures 

On Friday, March 27, 2020, the U.S. Congress passed the CARES Act, which was signed into law. 

The relief package provided funding via two main funding sources, the Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief Fund (ESSER Fund), the Governor's Emergency Education Relief Fund (GEER Fund). On May 
18, Gov. Polis signed Executive Order which directed the transfer of $510 million from the State of Colorado’s 
CARES Act Coronavirus Relief Fund to the Colorado Department of Education to be awarded to school districts, the 
Charter School Institute, the Colorado School for the Deaf and the Blind and facility schools on a per pupil basis. 

Lake Count School District CARES Act funds are as follows: 

ESSER Total Allocation - $189,618 

ESSER Committed Funds - $189,618 

 

CRF Total Allocation - $744,071 

CRF Committed Funds - $510,241 estimate 

 

The following charts show expenditures broken down into several categories for each of the two funds.  There are over 

$230,000 in anticipated CRF expenditures currently projected that are estimated.  The numbers presented provide a 

snapshot of anticipated spend, but are not final, as adjustments are being made on a daily basis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.lakecountyschools.net/


 

 

 

Lake County School District 
328 West 5th Street, Leadville, Colorado 80461   719.486.6800 
www.lakecountyschools.net 
 
Lake County High School       Lake County Intermediate School  West Park Elementary School  The Center Early Childhood Programs 
1000 West 4th Street  1000 West 6th Street   130 West 12th Street   315 West 6th Street 
Leadville, Colorado 80461 Leadville, Colorado 80461  Leadville, Colorado 80461  Leadville, Colorado 80461 
719.486.6950  719.486.6830   719.486.6890   719.486.6920 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.lakecountyschools.net/


 

 

 

Lake County School District 
328 West 5th Street, Leadville, Colorado 80461   719.486.6800 
www.lakecountyschools.net 
 
Lake County High School       Lake County Intermediate School  West Park Elementary School  The Center Early Childhood Programs 
1000 West 4th Street  1000 West 6th Street   130 West 12th Street   315 West 6th Street 
Leadville, Colorado 80461 Leadville, Colorado 80461  Leadville, Colorado 80461  Leadville, Colorado 80461 
719.486.6950  719.486.6830   719.486.6890   719.486.6920 

 

 

http://www.lakecountyschools.net/


1 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into as of this 11thday of August, 2020, between 

Lake County School District R-1, a public school district and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 

("District") and Morning Star Child Care d/b/a Bright Start Learning Center, a Colorado nonprofit 

corporation (“BSLC”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, District is the owner of certain real property and improvements situated in Lake 

County, Colorado and located at 328 West 5th Street, Leadville, Colorado 80461, on which is located the 

District’s administrative office (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, BSLC is a childcare facility for children ages 1-5 that serves the Lake County community; 

and  

WHEREAS, BSLC desires to lease space within the Property for the operation of its program for 

the 2020-2021 school year; and  

WHEREAS, the District desires to lease space within the Property subject to the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement.    

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

District and BSLC agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into and 

made part of this Agreement. 

2. Definitions. The following capitalized terms used in this Agreement have the following 

meanings:  

a. “Building” means the District’s administrative office building located on the 

Property.  

b. “Building Rules and Regulations” means the rules and regulations for the Building 

set forth in “Exhibit B”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference, as amended from time to time.  The term “Tenant” as used in the 

Building Rules and Regulations shall refer to BSLC.  If there is a conflict between 

the Building Rules and Regulations and this Agreement, this Agreement shall 

control.  

c. “Common Areas” means the entrances, exists, driveways, curbs, walkways, 

hallways, parking areas, landscaped areas, restrooms, and like areas or facilities 



which are located on the Property and in the Building, and which are designated 

by the District from time to time as areas or facilities available for the 

nonexclusive use in common by BSLC, its officers, employees, agents, and 

invitees. 

d. “Premises” means the areas (two rooms, a cubicle, and a courtyard) depicted on 

“Exhibit A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, consisting 

of approximately 11,000 square feet.  

e. “Property” means the real property located at 328 West 5th Street, Leadville, 

Colorado 80461.  

3. Lease. District hereby leases to BSLC, and BSLC hereby leases from District, the Premises 

for the term of this Agreement.  

4. Term.  Subject to earlier termination as provided herein, the term of this Agreement shall 

commence on 12:01 a.m. on August 15, 2020 and shall end at 11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2021 (the “Term”).  

5. Rent.  In consideration for the Lease of the Premises and other rights under this 

Agreement, BSLC shall pay to District base rent in the amount of $500.00 per month (“Base Rent”), which 

shall be payable in advance, without offset, deduction, or abatement, on the first day of each month 

during the Term.  BSLC’s obligation to pay Base Rent shall be prorated at the commencement of the Term. 

Base Rent shall be paid to District at the address set forth for District in Section 31 of this Agreement, or 

at such other place as District may designate from time to time.     

6. Quiet Enjoyment.  District covenants and agrees that, provided BSLC is not in default of 

and keeps, observes, and performs BSLC’s covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, BSLC 

shall have quiet and peaceable possession of the Premises, and such possession and right use shall not be 

unreasonably disturbed or interfered with by District. 

7. Use.  BSLC shall use the Premises for the purpose of operating a childcare facility for 

children ages 1-5 and for no other purpose.  BSLC shall comply with (i) applicable federal, state, and local 

law, (ii) District building and use polices as adopted by its Board of Education or Superintendent of Schools 

and amended from time to time, and (iii) Building Rules and Regulations. In addition, BSLC shall (x) develop 

and administer a secure entry system to permit parent entry into the Building in accordance with 

applicable law, (y) develop and administer a system for ensuring that adults and children do not use the 

Building restrooms at the same time in accordance with applicable law, and (z) monitor its students in the 

Common Areas at all times.   

8. Right to Use Common Areas. District grants BSLC and its employees, agents, and invitees,  

the non-exclusive right, together with all other occupants of the Building and their employees, agents, 

and invitees, to use the Common Area during the Term, subject to applicable laws and Building Rules and 

Regulations. BSLC may install up to two (2) refrigerators in the lounge/breakroom that shall be for the 

exclusive use of BSLC and its employees, agents, and invitees.  



9. Acceptance of Present Condition.  BSLC has inspected the Premises and accepts the same 

in the present condition. Taking possession of the Premises by BSLC shall be conclusive evidence as against 

BSLC that the Premises were in good and satisfactory condition when possession was delivered to BSLC.  

10. Utilities.  District shall not be liable for any personal injury or any property damage 

resulting from the negligent operation or faulty installation of utility services provided for use on the 

Premises, nor shall District be liable for any injury or damage suffered by BSLC as a result of the failure to 

make necessary repairs to the utility facilities.  BSLC shall be liable for any injury or damages, including 

freezing, stoppage, or blockage, to the equipment or service lines of the utility suppliers that are located 

on the Premises or the Property resulting from the negligent or willful acts of BSLC, or its officers, 

employees, agents, or invitees.   

11. Taxes. The Property is currently tax exempt. To the extent BSLC’s permitted use may not 

be tax exempt, BSLC agrees to pay Lake County (or any other applicable taxing authority) its share of taxes 

imposed and applicable to such use. 

12. Alterations or Improvements.   

a. BSLC, at BSLC’s sole cost and expense, shall install (i) a door access control system 

for the Building that is acceptable to the District in District’s sole discretion, (ii) a 

sink in Room 14 of the Premises, and (iii) a shed in the courtyard of the Premises 

(the “BSLC Improvements”). BSLC shall install the BSLC Improvements in a good 

and workmanlike manner using licensed and bonded contractors acceptable to 

the District. BSLC shall coordinate with the District to install the BSLC 

Improvements at a time and in a manner that does not interfere with the District’s 

operations at the Property.  

b. Except as set forth in this Section 12(a), BSLC shall not make any alterations, 

additions, or improvements to the Premises without first obtaining the written 

consent of District.  Any alterations, additions or improvements to the Premises, 

if approved by District, shall at once become a part of the realty and belong to 

District and shall be surrendered with the Premises. Any alterations, additions, or 

improvements shall be at BSLC’s sole cost and expense and in compliance with 

the applicable law and shall be performed by a licensed and bonded contractor 

first approved by District.   

13. Assignment and Sublease.  BSLC shall not sublet the Premises or any part thereof, or 

assign this Agreement, or any part hereof, without the prior written consent of District, which consent 

may be withheld in District’s sole and absolute discretion. 

14. Maintenance, Repair and Snow Removal.  BSLC shall, at BSLC’s sole expense, keep and 

maintain the Premises and appurtenances in good and sanitary condition and repair.  All maintenance and 

repair of the Premises, including normal and minor maintenance repair and major maintenance and repair 

of any feature or improvement constructed by BSLC shall be the full responsibility of BSLC.  BSLC, at BSLC’s 



sole expense, shall provide snow removal for the courtyard within the Premises. District, at District’s 

expense, shall provide snow removal for Common Areas.    

15. Cleaning.  During the term, BSLC will, at its sole expense, keep the Premises in a neat, 

clean, and sanitary condition, including, but not limited to, daily disposal of soiled diapers and related 

waste in the Property dumpster. District, at District expense, shall furnish BSLC with reasonable janitorial 

services during the week, except when the Building is closed.   

16. Surrender of Property.  BSLC, at BSLC’s sole cost and expense, shall, at the termination or 

expiration of this Agreement, surrender and deliver the Premises in good order and condition as when 

the same were entered upon, loss by fire, inevitable accident or ordinary wear and tear excepted.  Except 

as otherwise provided in writing by District, BSLC’s obligations under this Section 16 include, but are not 

limited to, removing and disposing of all improvements constructed on the Premises.  Such removal and 

disposal shall be in accordance with applicable law.  If BSLC fails to comply with Section 16, District may 

(i) remove all improvements and BSLC real and personal property from the Premises and store the same 

in a public warehouse or elsewhere at BSLC’s expense, (ii) deem all such improvements and property to 

be abandoned, and, in such event, District may dispose of such improvements and property at BSLC’s 

expense, free from any claim by BSLC or anyone claiming by, through or under BSLC, and (iii) exercise any 

and all other remedies hereunder, at law and in equity all of which such remedies shall be cumulative and 

not exclusive. The provisions of this Section 16 and the BSLC’s obligations hereunder shall survive the 

expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

17. Access to Premises.  BSLC shall permit District, its agents, employees and contractors to 

have access to and enter the Premises at all reasonable and necessary times to inspect the Premises for 

any purpose connected with the repair, improvement, care and management of the Premises, or for any 

other purpose reasonable connected with District’s interest in the Premises. 

18. Liens.  BSLC shall not permit the creation of any type of lien upon the Premises, including, 

but not limited to a mechanic’s or material men’s lien.  The indemnification provisions of this Agreement 

shall apply to any such lien.  If, because of any act or omission of BSLC, and resulting from BSLC’s work on 

the Premises, any mechanic’s or other lien, charge or order for the payment of money shall be filed against 

the Premises or the Property, BSLC shall, at its own cost and expense, cause the same discharged of record 

or bonded within thirty (30) days from filing of such lien. 

19. Non-Discrimination; Compliance with Applicable Laws.  BSLC agrees that it shall not 

discriminate against any person because of race, color, creed, sex, sexual orientation, religion, national 

origin, or disability in its use of the Premises.  BSLC shall further comply with all applicable federal, state, 

and local laws, rules, and regulations.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, BSLC shall comply 

as applicable with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq (Public Law 101 – 336), and 

all applicable regulations promulgated thereunder by any regulatory agency.  The indemnification and 

termination provisions of this lease shall apply with respect to BSLC failure to comply with all applicable 

laws or regulations. 



20. Damage to Property.  In the event the Premises is destroyed or rendered wholly 

uninhabitable by fire, storm, earthquake, or other casualty not caused by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of BSLC, this Agreement shall terminate from such time except for the purpose of enforcing 

rights that may have then accrued or that may survive hereunder. Should a portion of the Premises be 

rendered uninhabitable, District shall have the option of either repairing such injured or damaged portion 

or terminating this Agreement. If District exercises its right to repair such uninhabitable portion, such part 

so injured shall be restored by District as soon as practicable, after which the Agreement will continue 

according to its terms.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, District shall have no obligation 

to repair damage to BSLC’s improvements. 

21. BSLC Default.  BSLC shall be in default of this Agreement if BSLC fails to fulfill any 

obligation or duty prescribed by this Agreement. Subject to any governing provisions of law to the 

contrary, if BSLC fails to cure the default within 30 days of the written notice, said default shall be deemed 

a material breach of this Agreement and may be grounds for eviction or other legal action to regain 

possession and recover any damages incurred by District due to BSLC’s default. In the alternative, District 

may elect to cure any default and recover the cost of such action from BSLC.  BSLC shall pay all costs, 

including, if applicable, utility disconnect and reconnect fees, damages, and expenses suffered by District 

by reason of BSLC’s default. 

22. District’s Remedies Upon Default.  If BSLC is in default under this Agreement, District shall 

have all of the remedies provided for in such circumstances by Colorado law, including without limitation, 

the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice to BSLC, in which event BSLC shall immediately 

surrender the Premises to District and, if BSLC fails to do so, District may, without prejudice to any other 

remedy which it may have for possession or arrearages in rent, enter upon and take possession of the 

Premises and expel or evict BSLC and any other person who may be occupying the Premises or any part 

thereof, by force if necessary, without being liable for any claim for damages therefor. 

23. Holdover by BSLC.  Should BSLC remain in possession of the Premises with the consent of 

District after the natural expiration of this Agreement, a new tenancy from month to month shall be 

created between District and BSLC which shall be subject to all the terms and conditions hereof, but shall 

be terminable on thirty (30) days’ written notice served by either District or BSLC on the other party.  

24. Surrender of the Property.  At the expiration or termination of this Agreement, BSLC shall 

quit and surrender the Premises in as good a state and condition as it was at the commencement of this 

Agreement, reasonable use and wear thereof and damages to the exterior by elements excepted.  

25. Insurance.  BSLC covenants and agrees to obtain and keep in full force and effect during 

the Term, and to pay the premiums and costs for, the types and kinds of insurance set forth in this Section 

25. 

a. BSLC shall procure and maintain property insurance on an “all risk” basis 

(including sprinkler leakage, if applicable) for the full replacement cost of all 

additions, improvements and alterations to the Premises made by BSLC and of all 

office equipment, furniture, trade fixtures, merchandise and all other items of 



BSLC’s property on the Premises. BSLC agrees to have such insurance policies 

endorsed to provide for a waiver of subrogation against District by the insurance 

carrier. 

b. BSLC shall procure and maintain commercial general liability insurance against 

claims for personal injury, death or property damage occurring in connection with 

the use and occupancy of the Premises and the Property, including contractual 

liability insuring the indemnification provisions contained in this lease, naming 

District as an additional insured, such insurance to afford protection to the limit 

of not less than one million dollars  

c. BSLC shall procure and maintain worker’s compensation insurance as required to 

meet the applicable laws of the State of Colorado, and employer’s liability 

insurance. 

d. BSLC covenants and agrees to obtain such other form or forms of insurance as 

BSLC or District may reasonably require from time to time in form, in amounts 

and for insurance risks as District may reasonably require.  

e. Except as otherwise approved in writing by District, all insurance obtained by 

BSLC shall be with insurance companies licensed to do business in Colorado, with 

an A.M. Best’s rating of “A” or better and approved by District, which approval 

shall not be unreasonably withheld; shall name District as additional insured on 

the commercial general liability, automobile liability, and builder’s risk policies; 

shall contain a waiver of rights of subrogation as between BSLC and District; and 

shall provide, by certificate of insurance or otherwise, that the insurance 

coverage shall not be cancelled or altered except upon thirty (30) days’ prior 

written notice to District.  Certificates of insurance and required endorsements 

obtained by BSL shall be delivered to District upon BSLC’s occupancy of the 

Premises and thereafter upon each renewal date of BSLC’s insurance. Within ten 

(10) days after District’s written request therefor, BSLC shall provide District with 

copies of all policies of insurance and endorsements required of BSLC pursuant to 

this Section 25.  

f. Before commencing work on approved improvements, BSLC and BSLC’s 

contractors,  at BSLC’s sole cost and expense, shall obtain and maintain or cause 

to be obtained and maintained worker’s compensation insurance covering all 

persons employed in connection with the work, and shall obtain liability 

insurance covering any loss or damage to persons or property arising in 

connection with any such improvements and such other insurance or bonds as 

District may reasonably require (all of which shall conform to the provisions of 

Section 25) and shall produce documentation of such within ten (10) days upon 

request by District. 



26. No Waiver of Government Immunity.  The parties hereto understand and agree that 

District is relying on, and does not waive or intent to waive by any provision of this Agreement, the 

monetary limitations, or any other rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado 

Governmental Immunity Act, Section 24-10-101, et seq. C.R.S., as from time to time amend or any other 

limitation or defense otherwise available to District, its officers, or its employees. 

27. Indemnification.  BSLC shall indemnify and hold harmless District, its directors, 

employees, and agents from and against all liability, claims, and demands, on account of injury, loss or 

damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, 

death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever, that occur on the Premises or 

Property and arise out of or are in any manner connected with BSLC’s occupancy of the Premises or use 

of the Property pursuant to this Agreement.  BSLC agrees to investigate, handle, repost to, and provide 

defense for and defend against any such liability, claim, or demand at the sole expense of BSLC.  BSLC also 

agrees to bear all other reasonable costs and expenses related thereto, including court costs and 

attorney’s fees, except as otherwise provided herein. 

28. Non-liability of District.  BSLC releases District and its directors, employees, and, agents, 

from any and all liability for any injury or damage to BSLC, or to BSLC’s property located on or about the 

Premises, resulting from any cause whatsoever, except injury or damage resulting from the gross 

negligence or willful act of District or its directors, employees, and agents. 

29. Abandonment.  If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, BSLC abandons the 

Premises, District may, at its options, and with or without terminating this Agreement, enter the Premises 

by any means without being liable for any prosecution therefor, and without becoming liable to BSLC for 

damages or for any payment of any kind whatsoever, and may, at District’s discretion, retake possession 

and make sure changes and repair as may be required, relet the Premises for the whole or any apart of 

the then unexpired term, and may receive and collect all rent payable by virtue of such reletting, and, at 

District’ option, hold BSLC liable for any difference between the rent that would have been payable under 

this Agreement during the balance of the unexpired term, and the net rent for such period realized by 

District by means of such reletting, less all expenses of such changes and repairs. 

30. Attorney’s Fees.  BSLC shall pay all reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs on behalf of 

District if any action brought by District results in a final court ruling or stipulated settlement in favor of 

District. 

31. Notices.  In every case where notice is required or permitted in this Agreement, notice 

shall be deemed sufficient if (1) personally delivered or (2) mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, 

properly addressed to the address contained herein, or such other addresses as shall be given in writing 

by one party to the other according to the provisions hereof. 

If to BSLC: 
 
WE NEED YOUR ADDRESS 
 



 
If to District: 
 
Lake County School District R-1 
Attn:  Superintendent 
328 West 5th Street 
Leadville, CO 80461 
 

32. Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.   

33. No Partnership Created.  The provisions of this Agreement are not intended to create, 
nor shall they be in any way interpreted or constructed to create, a joint venture, partnership, or other 
similar relationship between the parties. 

34. Third Parties.  This Agreement does not, and shall not be deemed or construed to, 
confer upon or grant to any third party any right to claim damages or to bring suit, action or other 
process against the parties because of any breach hereof or because of any of the terms, covenants, 
agreement and conditions herein. 

35. Complete Agreement.  It is understood and agreed that this Agreement contains the 
complete and final expression of the agreement between the parties as to the subject matter of this 
Lease and that there are no promises, representations, or inducements except as are herein set forth. 

36. Modification.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a duly authorized 
written instrument executed by the parties hereto.  Oral amendments to this Agreement are not 
permitted. 

37. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in all respects in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Colorado without regard to its conflict of laws rules.  The parties agree to the 
jurisdiction and venue of the courts of Lake County, Colorado in connection with any dispute arising out 
of or in any matter connected with this Agreement. 

38. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original for all purposes and all of which together 
shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

39. Section Headings.  Section Headings are inserted for convenience only and in no way 
limit or define interpretation to be places upon this Agreement. 

40. Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement 
shall not be a waiver of those rights.  A party waives only those rights specified in writing and signed by 
the party waiving its rights. 

41. No Recording.  This Agreement MAY NOT be recorded in the real property records. 

42. Survival of indemnity Obligations.  All indemnity obligations provided for in this 
Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement and shall be fully enforceable 
for a reasonable and foreseeable time thereafter, notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 



43. Binding Effect.  Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the 
parties, and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 

[Signature Page Appears on Next Page] 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Agreement as of the day and year 

first above written. 

 

      LAKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1 

 

             

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

 

 

MORNING STAR CHILD CARE D/B/A BRIGHT 

START LEARNING CENTER  

 

 

              

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Premises  

 

  



EXHIBIT B 

Building Rules and Regulations  

 

1.  No sign, placard, picture, advertisement, lettering, name or notice (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as “sign”) shall be inscribed, displayed, printed or affixed on or to any part of the outside or 

inside of the Building, the Premises or the surrounding area without District’s written consent which 

shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If District gives such consent, District may regulate the manner of 

display of the sign.  District shall have the right to remove any sign that has not been approved by 

District or is being displayed in a non-approved manner without notice to and at the expense of the 

Tenant.  All approved signs shall be installed at the expense of Tenant by a person approved by District.  

Tenant shall not place anything or allow anything to be placed near the glass of any window, door, 

partition or wall that may appear unsightly from outside of Premises. 

2.  The sidewalks, paved area, exits and entrances shall not be obstructed by any of the Tenants 

or used by them for any purpose other than for ingress to and egress from their respective Premises.  

The paved areas, exits, entrances, and roof are not for the use of the general public and the District shall 

in all cases retain the right to control thereof and prevent access thereto by all persons whose presence 

in the judgment of the District shall be prejudicial to the safety, character, reputation and interests of 

the Building or its Tenants; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to 

prevent access by persons with whom Tenant normally deals in the ordinary course of Tenant’s business 

unless such persons are engaged in illegal activities.  No Tenant and no employees, invitees, contractors 

or subcontractors of any Tenant shall go upon the roof of the Building.  

3.  Tenant shall not alter any lock or install any new additional locks or any bolts on any door of 

the Premises without the written consent of District.  

4.  The toilet rooms, urinals, wash bowls and other apparatus shall not be used for any purpose 

other than that for which they were constructed and no foreign substance of any kind whatsoever, 

including without limitation diapers, flushable wipes, and feminine hygiene products, shall be thrown 

therein.  The expense of any breakage, stoppage or damage resulting from a violation of this rule shall 

be borne by the Tenant who, or whose employees, agents, or invitees, shall have caused it.  

5.  Tenant shall not overload the floor of the Premises, shall not mark on or drive nails, screw or 

drill into the partitions, woodwork or plaster (except as may be incidental to the hanging of the wall 

decoration), and shall not in any way deface the Premises or any part thereof.   

6.  Tenant shall not use, keep, or permit to be used any food or noxious gas or substance in the 

Premises, or permit or suffer the Premises to be occupied or used in a manner offensive or 

objectionable to the District or other occupants of the Building by reason of noise, odors and/or 

vibrations, or interfere in any way with the other Tenants or those having business in the Building.  No 

animals or birds shall be brought in or kept in or about the Premises or the Building.  No Tenant shall 

disturb neighboring Buildings or Premises, or those having business with such occupants, by the use of 

any musical instruments, radio, phonograph, unusual noise or in any other way.  No Tenant shall throw 



anything out of doors or down the passageways.  No cooking shall be permitted by Tenant in the 

Premises.  

7.  Tenant shall not use or keep in the Premises, or the Building, any kerosene, gasoline or 

inflammable combustible fluid or material or use any method of heating or air conditioning other than 

that supplied by District.  

8.  The location of telephones, call boxes and other office equipment affixed to the Premises 

shall be subject to the approval of District.  

9. Tenant, upon termination of the tenancy, shall deliver to the District the keys to the Building, 

offices, rooms and toilet rooms which shall have been furnished and shall pay the District the cost of 

replacing any lost key or of changing the lock or locks opened by such lost key if District deems it 

necessary to make such change.  

10.  No Tenant shall affix to the floor of the Premises any linoleum, tile, carpet or other similar 

floor coverings except as approved by the District.  The expense of repairing any damage resulting from 

a violation of this rule or removal of any floor covering shall be borne by the Tenant.  

11.  District reserves the right to exclude or expel from the Premises any person who, in the 

judgment of Landlord, is intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or who shall in any 

manner do any act in violation of any of the rules and regulations of the Building. 

13.  Tenant agrees that it shall comply with all fire regulations that may be issued from time to 

time by District.  

14.  District reserves the right by written notice to Tenant, to rescind, alter or waive any rule or 

regulation at any time prescribed for the Building when, in District’s judgment, it is necessary, desirable 

or proper for the best interest of the Building or its Tenants.  

15.  Without the written consent of District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, Tenant 

shall not use the name of the Building in connection with or in promotion or advertising the business of 

Tenant except as Tenant’s address.  Tenant shall not disturb, solicit, or canvas any occupant of the 

Building and shall cooperate to prevent same.  

16.  Tenant shall be entitled to use parking spaces during working hours.  Tenant shall not park 

in driveways or loading areas nor reserved parking spaces of other tenants.  District or its agents shall 

have the right to cause to be removed any car of Tenant, its employees or agents, that may be parked in 

unauthorized areas, and Tenant agrees to save and hold harmless District, its agents and employees 

from any and all claims, losses, damages and demands asserted or arising in respect to or in connection 

with the removal of any such vehicle and for all expenses incurred by District in connection with such 

removal.  Tenant will from time to time, upon request of District, supply District with a list of license 

plate numbers of vehicles owned and/or operated by its employees and agents.  Tenant shall place and 

maintain blocks under any trailers parked in the parking facilities to protect the asphalt thereunder.     



 

4830-5756-7175, v. 2 



Administrative Policies 

 

CASB has updated Administrative policies in regards to the reopening of schools and Title IX.  

These policies were adjusted after the policy audit that Wendy Wyman, Paul Anderson and 

Bunny have been working on.  

The policies that are included are: 

Reopening Schools  

Revised JH Student Absences and Excuses Reopening 
Schools 

Revised JLCC Communicable/Infectious Diseases Reopening 
Schools 

Revised KI Visitors to Schools Reopening 
Schools 

Title IX  

Revised AC Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity Title IX 

Revised AC-E-1 Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity (Sample Notice) Title IX 

Revised AC-E-2 Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity (Complaint Form) Title IX 

Revised AC-R-1 
(Option 1) 

Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity (Complaint and 
Compliance Process) - District employee as compliance 
officer 

Title IX 

New AC-R-2 Sex-Based Discrimination and Sexual Harassment 
Investigation Procedures 

Title IX 

Revised JBB Sexual Harassment Title IX 

Revised JII Student Concerns, Complaints, and Grievances Title IX 

 

We have also worked with Kim Sheen, our school nurse, to updated the following policies to include 

permissions for students to self-carry medication for migraines/headaches. These were done after the 

policy audit. 

 JLCD and JLCD-R  Redline versions are attached.  



File:  JH 
 
 
 

 
1 of 4 

Student Absences and Excuses 
 
 
One criteria of a student's success in school is regular and punctual attendance. 
Frequent absences may lead to poor academic work, lack of social development, and 
possible academic failure. Regular attendance is of utmost importance for school 
interest, social adjustment, and scholastic achievement. No single factor may interfere 
with a student's progress more quickly than frequent tardiness or absence. 
 
According to state law, it is the obligation of every parent/guardian to ensure that every 
child under his/hertheir care and supervision receives adequate education and training 
and, if of compulsory attendance age, attends school. 
 
Continuity in the learning process and social adaptation is seriously disrupted by 
excessive absences. In most situations, the work missed cannot be made up 
adequately. Students who have good attendance generally achieve higher grades, 
enjoy school more, and are more employable after leaving school. For at least these 
reasons, the Board believes that a student must satisfy two basic requirements in order 
to earn full class credit:  (1) satisfy all academic requirements and (2) exhibit good 
attendance habits as stated in this policy. 
 
Excused absences 
 
The following shallwill be considered excused absences: 
 

1. A student who is temporarily ill or injured or whose absence is approved by the 
administrator of the school of attendance on a prearranged basis. Prearranged 
absences shallwill be approved for appointments or circumstances of a serious 
nature only which cannot be taken care of outside of school hours. 
 
2. A student who is absent for an extended period due to a physical, disability or a 
mental or emotional disability.behavioral health disorder.      
 
3. A student who is pursuing a work-study program under the supervision of the 
school. 
 
4. A student who is attending any school-sponsored activity or activities of an 
educational nature with advance approval by the administration. 
 
5. A student who is suspended or expelled. 

 
As applicable, the district may require suitable proof regarding the above exceptions, 
including written statements from medical sources. 
 
If a student is in out-of-home placement (as that term is defined by C.R.S. 22-32-138 
(1)(h)), absences due to court appearances and participation in court-ordered activities 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  1.26", Left +  4.6", Left +  5.82", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black, Not
Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black



File:  JH 
 

 
2 of 4 

shallwill be excused. The student’s assigned social worker shallmust verify the student’s 
absence was for a court appearance or court-ordered activity. 
 
Unexcused absences 
 
An unexcused absence is defined as an absence that is not covered by one of the 
foregoing exceptions. Each unexcused absence shallwill be entered on the student's 
record. The parents/guardians of the student receiving an unexcused absence shallwill 
be notified orally or in writing by the district of the unexcused absence. 
 
In accordance with law, the district may impose appropriate penalties that relate directly 
to classes missed while unexcused. Penalties may include a warning, school detention, 
or in-school suspension. Academic penalties, out-of-school suspensions, or expulsion 
shallwill not be imposed for any unexcused absence. 
 
The administration shallwill develop procedures to implement appropriate penalties. The 
school administration shallwill consider the correlation between course failure, truancy, 
and a student dropping out of school in developing these procedures and shallwill 
implement research-based strategies to re-engage students with a high number of 
unexcused absences.] 
 
Students and parents/guardians may petition the Board of Education for exceptions to 
this policy provided that no exception shallwill be sustained if the student fails to abide 
by all requirements imposed by the Board as conditions for granting any such 
exception. 
 
The maximum number of unexcused absences a student may incur before judicial 
proceedings are initiated to enforce compulsory attendance is 10 days during any 
calendar year or school year. 
 
 
Chronic absenteeism 
 
When a student has an excessive number of absences, these absences negatively 
impact the student’s academic success. For this reason, a student who has 15 total 
absences in a school year, whether the absences are excused or unexcused, may be 
identified as “chronically absent” by the principal or designee. Absences due to 
suspension or expulsion shallwill not be counted in the total number of absences 
considered for purposes of identifying a student as “chronically absent.” 
 
If a student is identified as “chronically absent,” the principal or designee shallwill      
develop a plan to improve the student’s attendance. The plan shallwill include best 
practices and research-based strategies to address the reasons for the student’s 
chronic absenteeism, including but not limited to academic support plan, safety plan, 
transportation plan, mental or physical health resources, and/or referrals, check ins with 
a trusted adult at school, regular conferencing with parents/guardians, or an attendance 
contract. When practicable, the student’s parent/guardian shall will participate in the 
development of the plan. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Line spacing:  At least 0.05 pt

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial



File:  JH 
 

 
3 of 4 

 
Nothing herein shallwill require the principal or designee to identify a student as 
“chronically absent” prior to declaring the student as a “habitual truant” and pursuing 
court proceedings against the student and his or her parents/guardians to compel the 
student’s attendance in accordance with state law. 
 
Make-up work 
 
Make-up work shallwill be provided for any class in which a student has an excused 
absence unless otherwise determined by the building administrator or unless the 
absence is due to the student’s expulsion from school. It is the responsibility of the 
student to pick up any make-up assignments permitted on the day returning to class. 
There shallwill be 2 day(s) allowed for make-up work for each day of absence. 
 
Make-up work shallwill be allowed following an unexcused absence or following a 
student’s suspension from school with the goal of providing the student an opportunity 
to keep up with the class and an incentive to attend school. This work may receive full 
or partial credit to the extent possible as determined by the building administrator.  
 
Unless otherwise permitted by the building administrator, make-up work shallwill not be 
provided during a student’s expulsion. Rather, the district shallwill offer alternative 
education services to the expelled student in accordance with state law. The district 
shallwill determine the amount of credit the expelled student will receive for work 
completed during any alternative education program. 
 
Tardiness 
 
Tardiness is defined as the appearance of a student without proper excuse after the 
scheduled time that a class begins. Because of the disruptive nature of tardiness and 
the detrimental effect upon the rights of the non-tardy student to uninterrupted learning, 
appropriate penalties may be imposed for excessive tardiness. Parents/guardians 
shallwill be notified of all penalties regarding tardiness. 
 
In an unavoidable situation, a student detained by another teacher or administrator 
shallwill not be considered tardy provided that the teacher or administrator gives the 
student a pass to enter the next class. Teachers shallwill honor passes presented in 
accordance with this policy. The provisions of this policy shall beare applicable to all 
students in the district, including those above and below the age for compulsory 
attendance as required by law. 
 
Adopted: August 2000 
Revised: January 2018 
Revised: August 2020 
 
 

LEGAL REFS.: C.R.S. 22-14-101 et seq. (dropout prevention and student re-
engagement) 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  1.26", Left +  4.6", Left +  5.82", Left +  4.83", Left +
Not at  4.83"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  1.26", Left +  4.6", Left +  5.82", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  1.31", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  4.6", Left +  5.82", Left +  1.25", Left +  3.38", Left +
Not at  3.38"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Not Italic, Font
color: Black



File:  JH 
 

 
4 of 4 

  C.R.S. 22-32-109 (1)(n) (length of school year, instruction & contact 
time) 

  C.R.S. 22-32-109.1 (2)(a) (conduct and discipline code) 
  C.R.S. 22-32-138 (6) (excused absence requirements for students in 
out-of-home placements) 

  C.R.S. 22-33-101 et seq. (School Attendance Law of 1963) 
  C.R.S. 22-33-105 (3)(d)(III) (opportunity to make up work during 
suspension) 
 C.R.S. 22-33-108 (judicial proceedings to enforce school attendance 
laws) 
 C.R.S. 22-33-203 (educational alternatives for expelled students and 
determination of credit) 
 1 CCR 301-78 Rules 1.00 et seq. (standardized calculation for 
counting student attendance and truancy) 

 
CROSS REFS.: EBCE, Closing and Cancellations 
  IC/ICA, School Year/School Calendar/Instruction Time 
  JEA, Compulsory Attendance Ages 
  JFABE*, Students in Foster Care 
  JFC, Student Withdrawal from School/Dropouts 
  JHB, Truancy 
  JK, Student Discipline 

 JKD/JKE, Suspension/Expulsion of Students (and Other Disciplinary 
Interventions) 
  JLIB, Student Dismissal Precautions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...



File:  JLCC 
 
 
 

 
1 of 3 

Communicable/Infectious Diseases 
 
 
 
The Board of Education recognizes that communicable diseases which may afflict 
students range from common childhood diseases, acute and short-term in nature, to 
chronic, life-threatening diseases such as human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) 
infection. This school district shallwill rely on the advice of the medical community in 
assessing the risk of transmission of various communicable diseases to determine how 
best to protect the health of both students and staff. The risk of transmitting HIV/AIDS is 
extremely low in school settings when current guidelines and preventative measures are 
followed. 
 
Management of common communicable diseases shallwill be in accordance with 
Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment or local public health 
department guidelines. A student who exhibits symptoms of a readily-transmissible 
communicable disease may be temporarily excluded from school attendance. 
 
Students who complain of illness at school may be referred to the school nurse and may 
be sent home as soon as the parent/guardian or person designated on the student’s 
emergency medical authorization form has been notified. 
 
The district reserves the right to require a physician's statement authorizing the student's 
return to school. 
 
In all proceedings related to this policy, the district shallwill respect the student's right to 
privacy. 
 
When information is received by a staff member or volunteer that a student is afflicted 
with a serious, readily-transmissible disease, the staff member or volunteer shallwill 
promptly notify the school nurse or principal to determine appropriate measures to 
protect student and staff health and safety. The principal, after consultation with the 
student and parent/guardian, shallwill determine which additional staff members, if any, 
have need to know of the affected student’s condition. and whether the Colorado 
Department of Public Health and Environment or the local public health department must 
be notified. Only those personsstaff members with direct responsibility for the care of the 
student shallwill be informed of the specific nature of the condition if it is determined 
there is a need for such individuals to know this information. 
 
The superintendent shallwill initiate procedures to ensure that all medical information will 
be held in strict confidence. Any school staff member who violates confidentiality shallwill 
be subject to appropriate disciplinary measures. 
 
Adopted: August 2000 
Revised: August 2020 
 
LEGAL REFS.: C.R.S. 22-33-104 (2)(a) (compulsory attendance law not applicable to a 

student who is temporarily ill and such absence is approved) 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 

single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:

(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab

stops:  1.26", Left +  4.6", Left +  5.82", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least 0.05

pt

Formatted: Line spacing:  At least 0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 

single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:

(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab

stops:  1.26", Left +  4.6", Left +  5.82", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Not Italic, Font

color: Black



File:  JLCC 
 

 
2 of 3 

  C.R.S. 22-33-106 (2) (grounds for suspension, expulsion and denial of 
admission) 

 
CROSS REFS.: EBBA, Prevention of Disease/Infection Transmission (Handling Body 

Fluids) 
  IC/ICA, School Year, School Calendar, Instructional Time  
  JLCA, Physical Examinations of Students 
  JLCE, First Aid and Emergency Medical Care 
  JRA/JRC, Student Records/Release of Information on Students 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Not Italic, Font

color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  -0", Hanging:  0", Line

spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No

border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No

border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left +  4.6", Left +  5.82", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black



File:  JLCC 
 

 
3 of 3 

 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 



File:  KI 
 
 
 

 
 

Visitors to Schools 
 
The district will make reasonable efforts to accommodate requests to visit the district’s 
schools, yet also recognizes concerns for the welfare of students. Therefore, the district 
limits visitors to: 
 

1. Parents/guardians of current students; 
2. Other family members of current students who are approved by the student’s 

parent/guardian; and  
3. Board members and other persons invited by the district for official business 

purposes. 
 
To ensure visitors do not disrupt the educational process or other school operations and 
that no unauthorized persons enter schools, all visitors shallmust report to the school 
office immediately when entering a school. Authorized visitors may:  (1) be required to 
sign in and out; (2) be given name-tags to wear identifying themselves as visitors; and 
(3) be accompanied by a district employee for some or all of the visit. School 
administrators may approve additional building procedures pertaining to school visitors 
to preserve a proper and safe learning environment. 
 
Unauthorized persons shallmay not loiter on school property at any time. Law 
enforcement authorities may be called to enforce this policy provision. 
 
Visiting schools is a privilege, not a right, which may be limited, denied, or revoked by a 
school administrator or designee based on considerations of student and/or staff health, 
safety, efficient school operations, maintenance of a proper educational environment, or 
failure to comply with this policy.  
 
Adopted: August 2000 
Revised: November 2010 
Revised: August 2020 
 
LEGAL REFS.: C.R.S. 18-9-109 (interference with school staff or students) 

 C.R.S. 18-9-110 (trespass, interference at or in public buildings) 
 C.R.S. 18-9-112 (definition of loitering) 
 C.R.S. 18-9-117 (unlawful conduct on public property) 
 C.R.S. 18-12-105.5 (unlawful possession of weapons on school  
 property) 
 C.R.S. 22-32-109.1 (7) (Board must adopt open school policy) 

 
CROSS REFS.: ADC, Tobacco-Free Schools 

 CF, School Building Administration 
 EBBA, Prevention of Disease/Infection Transmission  
 ECA/ECAB, Security/Access to Buildings 
 JLCC, Communicable/Infectious Diseases 
 KFA, Public Conduct on District Property 

 
 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...



File:  KI 
 

 
2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 



File:  AC 
 
 
 

 
1 of 5 

Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 
 
 
The district is committed to providing a safe learning and work environment where all 
members of the school community are treated with dignity and respect. The schools in 
the district are subject to all federal and state laws and constitutional provisions 
prohibiting discrimination on the basis of disability, race, creed, color, sex, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, religion, ancestry or need for special education 
services. Accordingly, no otherwise qualified student, employee, applicant for 
employment, or member of the public shallmay be excluded from participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be subjected to unlawful discrimination under any district 
program or activity on the basis of disability, race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, ancestry, creed, religion, sex (which includes marital 
status), sexual orientation (which includes transgender), disability ancestry, or need for 
special education services.  Discrimination against employees and applicants for 
employment based on age, genetic information, and conditions related to pregnancy or 
childbirth is also prohibited in accordance with state and/or federal law. 
      
For purposes of this policy, these term have the following meanings: 
  
● “Race” includes hair texture, hair type, or a protective hairstyle that is commonly or 

historically associated with race.       
● “Protective Hairstyle” includes such hairstyles as braids, locs, twists, tight coils or 

curls, cornrows, bantu knots, afros, and head wraps.       
● “Sexual Orientation” means a person’s orientation toward heterosexuality, 

homosexuality, bisexuality, or transgender status or another person’s perception 
thereof.   

 
This policy and supporting regulation shall(s) will be used to address all concerns 
regarding unlawful discrimination and harassment, except those. Alleged conduct 
regarding sex-based discrimination and sexual harassment which are addressed in other 
Board policies listed in this policy’s cross references.will follow the complaint and 
investigation procedures specific to this conduct.  
 
In keeping with these statements, the following shall beare objectives of this school 
district: 
 

1. To promote the rights and responsibilities of all individuals as set forth in the state 
and federal constitutions, pertinent legislation, and applicable judicial interpretations. 
 
2. To encourage positive experiences in terms of human values for children and 
adults who have differing personal and family characteristics or who come from 
various socio-economic, racial, and ethnic groups. 

 
3. To consider carefully, in all decisions made which affect the schools, the potential 
benefits or adverse consequences that those decisions might have on the human 
relations aspects of all segments of society. 

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Italic

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  1.25", Left +  4.57", Left +  5.83", Left

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Level 1, Indent: Hanging:  0.01 ch, Left
 1.49 ch, First line:  -0.01 ch, Line spacing:  single, Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.75" + Indent at:  1",
Don't hyphenate, Font Alignment: Top, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  0.5", Left + 
4.57", Left +  5.83", Left +  0.38", Left + Not at  0.38",  0"
Horizontal 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.25", First line:  0", Line
spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No
border), Tab stops:  0.5", Left +  4.57", Left +  5.83", Left + 
0.38", Left + Not at  0.38"

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted ...



File:  AC 
 

 
2 of 5 

 
4. To utilize educational experiences to build each individual's pride in the 
community in which he or she livesthey live. 

 
5. To initiate a process of reviewing all policies and practices of this school district in 
order to achieve the objectives of this policy to the greatest extent possible. 

 
6. To investigate and resolve promptly any complaints of unlawful discrimination and 
harassment. 

 
7. To investigate and appropriately discipline staff and students found to be 
responsible for incidents of harassment or unlawful discrimination in violation of 
Board policy. 

 
Annual notice 
 
The district shallwill issue a written notice prior to the beginning of each school year that 
advises students, parents, employees, and the general public that the educational 
programs, activities, and employment opportunities offered by the district are offered 
without regard to disability, race, creed, color, sex (which includes marital status),, sexual 
orientation, marital status,  (which includes transgender), religion, national origin, religion, 
ancestry, creed, disability or need for special education services.  With respect to 
employment practices, the district shallwill also issue written notice that it does not 
discriminate on the basis of age, genetic information, or conditions related to pregnancy 
or childbirth. The announcement shallwill also include the name, address, email address, 
and telephone number of the person(s) designated to coordinate Title IX and , Section 
504, and ADA compliance activities. 
 
The notice shallwill be disseminated to persons with limited English language skills in the 
person’s own language. It shallwill also be made available to persons who are visually or 
hearing impaired. 
 
The notice shallwill appear on a continuing basis in all district media containing general 
information, including: teachers’ guides, school publications, the district’s website, 
recruitment materials, application forms, vacancy announcements, student handbooks, 
school program notices, summer program newsletters, and annual letters to parents. 
 
Harassment is prohibited 
 
Harassment based on a person’s disability, race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, ancestry, creed, religion, sex (which includes marital 
status), sexual orientation (which includes transgender), disabilityancestry or need for 
special education services. is a form of discrimination prohibited by state and federal 
law. Preventing and remedying such harassment in schools is essential to ensure a 
nondiscriminatory, safe environment in which students can learn, employees can work, 
and members of the public can access and receive the benefit of district facilities and 
programs. All such harassment, by district employees, students, and third parties, is 
strictly prohibited. 
 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...



File:  AC 
 

 
3 of 5 

All district employees and students share the responsibility to ensure that harassment 
does not occur at any district school, on any district property, at any district or school-
sanctioned activity or event, or off school property when such conduct has a nexus to 
the school, or any district curricular or non-curricular activity or event. 
 
For purposes of this policy, harassment is any unwelcome, hostile and offensive verbal, 
written or physical conduct based on or directed at a person’s race, color, national origin, 
ancestry, creed, religion, sex, sexual orientation (which includes transgender), disability 
or need for special education services that:  (1) results in physical, emotional or mental 
harm, or damage to property; (2) is sufficiently severe, persistent, or pervasive that it 
interferes with an individual’s ability to participate in or benefit from an educational 
program or activity or creates an intimidating, hostile or threatening environment; or (3) 
substantially disrupts the orderly operation of the school. Board policy on sexual 
harassment will apply to complaints alleging sexual harassment. 
 
Harassing conduct may take many forms, including but not limited to: 
 
1. verbal acts and name-calling; 
 
2. graphic depictions and written statements, which may include use of cell phones or 

the Internet; 
 
3. other conduct that may be physically threatening, harmful or humiliating. 
 
                                                        
Reporting unlawful discrimination and harassment 
 
Any student who believes he or she hasthey have been a victimtarget of unlawful 
discrimination or harassment, as defined in Board policy and supporting regulations, or 
who has witnessed such unlawful discrimination or harassment, shallmust immediately 
report it to an administrator, counselor, teacher, or the district’s compliance officer and 
file a complaint as set forth in the regulation which accompanies this policy. 
 
Any employee, applicant for employment, or member of the public who believes he or 
she hasthey have been a victimtarget of unlawful discrimination or harassment, or who 
has witnessed such unlawful discrimination or harassment, shallmust file a complaint 
with either an immediate supervisor or the district’s compliance officer. 
 
If the individual alleged to have engaged in prohibited conduct is the person designated 
as the compliance officer, an alternate compliance officer shallwill be designated to 
investigate the matter in accordance with this policy’s accompanying regulation. 
 
District action 
 
All district employees who witness unlawful discrimination or harassment shallmust      
take prompt and effective action to stop it, as prescribed by the district. 
 
The district shallwill take appropriate action to promptly and impartially investigate 
allegations of unlawful discrimination and harassment, to end unlawful behavior, to 
prevent the recurrence of such behavior, and to prevent retaliation against the 
individual(s) who files the complaint and/or any person who participates in the 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Bold

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Tab stops:  0.38",
Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left + 
4.53", Left +  5.81", Left

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.25", Left + 
4.57", Left +  5.83", Left

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black



File:  AC 
 

 
4 of 5 

investigation. When appropriate, the district shallwill take interim measures during the 
investigation to protect against further unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. 
 
To the extent possible, all reports of unlawful discrimination or harassment will be kept 
confidential. Students or employees who knowingly file false complaints or give false 
statements in an investigation shallmay be subject to discipline, up to and including 
suspension/expulsion for students and termination of employment. No student, 
employee, or member of the public shallmay be subject to adverse treatment in 
retaliation for any good faith report of harassment under this policy. 
 
Upon determining that incidents of unlawful discrimination or harassment are occurring 
in particular district settings or activities, the district shallwill implement measures 
designed to remedy the problem in those areas or activities. 
 
Any student or employee who engages in unlawful discrimination or harassment shallwill      
be disciplined according to applicable Board policies and the district shallwill take 
reasonable action to restore lost educational or employment opportunities to the 
victimtarget (s). 
 
In cases involving potential criminal conduct, the compliance officer shalldistrict will 
determine whether appropriate law enforcement officials should be notified. 
 
Notice and training 
 
To reduce unlawful discrimination and harassment and ensure a respectful school 
environment, the administration is responsible for providing notice of this policy to all 
district schools and departments. The policy and complaint process shall bemust be 
prominently posted on the district’s website, referenced in student and employee 
handbooks and made otherwise available to all students, staff, and members of the 
public through electronic or hard-copy distribution. Training materials regarding sex-     
based discrimination and sexual harassment are available to the public on the district’s 
website.  
 
Students and district employees shallwill receive periodic training related to recognizing 
and preventing unlawful discrimination and harassment. District employees shall 
receivemust      receive additional training related to handling reports of unlawful 
discrimination and harassment. The training will include, but not be limited to: 
 

4. awareness of groups protected under state and federal law and/or 
targeted groups; 

5. how to recognize and react to unlawful discrimination and harassment; 
and 

6. proven harassment prevention strategies. 
 
Adopted: prior to 2016 
Revised: August 2016 
Revised August 2020 
 
LEGAL REFS.: 20 U.S.C. 1681 (Title VII, Education Amendments of 1972) 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left + 
4.53", Left +  5.81", Left

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.25", Left + 
4.57", Left +  5.83", Left

Formatted: Font: Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black



File:  AC 
 

 
5 of 5 

  20 U.S.C. 1701-1758 (Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972) 
 29 U.S.C. 621 et seq. (Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967) 
 29 U.S.C. 701 et seq. (Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973) 
 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq. (Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act) 
 42 U.S.C. 2000d (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 

in 1972) 
  42 U.S.C. 2000e (Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964) 
 42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq. (Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 

2008) 
  34 C.F.R. Part 100 through Part 110 (civil rights regulations) 
 C.R.S. 2-4-401 (13.5) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes 

transgender) 
  C.R.S. 18-9-121 (bias-motivated crimes) 
 C.R.S. 22-32-109 (1)(ll) (Board duty to adopt written policies prohibiting 

discrimination) 

C.R.S. 22-32-110 (1)(k) (definition of racial or ethnic background includes hair texture, 

definition of protective hairstyle) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-301 et seq. (Colorado Civil Rights Division) 
 C.R.S. 24-34-301 (7) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes 

transgender) 
 C.R.S. 24-34-402 et seq. (discriminatory or unfair employment 

practices) 
 C.R.S. 24-34-402.3 (discrimination based on pregnancy, childbirth or 
related conditions; notice of right to be free from such discrimination 
must be posted “in a conspicuous place” accessible to employees) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-601 (unlawful discrimination in places of public 
accommodation) 

 C.R.S. 24-34-602 (penalty and civil liability for unlawful discrimination) 
 
CROSS REFS.: GBA, Open Hiring/Equal Employment Opportunity 
  GBAA, Sexual Harassment 
  JB, Equal Educational Opportunities 
  JBB*, Sexual Harassment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: First line:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  1.25", Left +  4.57", Left +  5.83", Left

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...

Formatted ...



File:  AC-E-1 
 
 
 

 
 

Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 
 
 
In compliance with Titles VI & VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 
Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008, and Colorado law, Lake County 
School District does not unlawfully discriminate against otherwise qualified students, 
employees, applicants for employment, or members of the public on the basis of 
disability, race, creed, color, sex, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, national 
origin, religion, ancestry, creed, or need for special education services. Discrimination 
against employees and applicants for employment based on age, marital status, sexual 
orientation (which includes transgender), genetic information, and conditions related to 
pregnancy or childbirth, disability or need for special education services is also prohibited in 
admissions, access to, treatment, or employment in educational programs accordance with 
state and/or activities which it operatesfederal law. 
      
Complaint procedures have been established for students, parents, employees, and 
members of the public. The following person(s) have been identified as the compliance 
officer for the district:  
 
 

Mike Vagher, Director of Safety/Security/Athletics 
328 West 5th Street 
Leadville, CO 80461 

Office:  719-486-6808 / Cell:  719-293-0112 
 

mvagher@lakecountyschools.net 
 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
Name(s) of employee(s) designated as the Title IX Coordinator 
 
           

Mike Vagher, Director of Safety/Security/Athletics 
328 West 5th Street 
Leadville, CO 80461 

Office:  719-486-6808 / Cell:  719-293-0112 
 

mvagher@lakecountyschools.net 
 
 
Outside agencies 
 
Complaints regarding violations of Title VI, (race, national origin), Title IX (sex/, gender), 
Section 504/ADA (handicap or disability), may be filed directly with the Office for Civil 
Rights, U.S. Department of Education, 1244 North Speer Blvd., Suite 310, Denver, CO 
80204. Complaints regarding violations of Title VII (employment) and the ADEA 
(prohibiting age discrimination in employment) may be filed directly with the Federal 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.25", Left +  2",
Left +  4.57", Left +  5.83", Left

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  3", Centered + 
6", Right

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black



File:  AC-E-1 
 

 
2 of 2 

Office of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, 303 E. 17th Ave., Suite 510, 
Denver, CO 80202, or the Colorado Civil Rights Commission, 1560 Broadway, Suite 
1050, Denver, CO 80202. 
 
Issued: Prior to 2018 
Revised: August 2018 
Revised: August 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black



File:  AC-E-2 
 
 
 

 
1 of 2 

Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 
(Complaint Form) 

 
Date:  _______________ 
 
Name of complainant:  ________________________________________________ 
 
School:  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Address:  ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone:  __________________________ 
 
❏ Please check here for allegations of sex-based discrimination and/or sexual 
harassment. (Note: Investigator will use investigation procedures consistent with 
allegations of sex-based discrimination and/or sexual harassment).  
 
Summary of alleged unlawful discrimination or harassment: 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Name(s) of individual(s) allegedly engaging in prohibited conduct: 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Date(s) alleged prohibited conduct occurred: 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Name(s) of witness(es) to alleged prohibited conduct: 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt



File:  AC-E-2 
 

 
2 of 2 

If others are affected by the possible unlawful discrimination or harassment, please give 
their names: 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Your suggestions regarding resolving the complaint:  _________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Please describe any corrective action you wish to see taken with regard to the alleged 
unlawful discrimination or harassment. You may also provide other information relevant 
to this complaint. 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ________________________ 
Signature of complainant     Date 
 
_________________________________  ________________________ 
Signature of person receiving complaint   Date 
 
 
Issued: March 2012 
Revised: August 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt, Don't suppress line numbers

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: Arial



File:  AC-R 
 
 
 

 
1 of 6 

Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 
(Complaint and Compliance Process) 

 
 
The district is committed to providing a working and learning environment that is free 
from unlawful discrimination and harassment. The district shallmust promptly respond to 
concerns and complaints of unlawful discrimination and/or harassment; take action in 
response when unlawful discrimination and/or harassment is discovered; impose 
appropriate sanctions on offenders in a case-by-case manner; and protect the privacy of 
all those involved in unlawful discrimination and/or harassment complaints as required 
by state and federal law. When appropriate, the complaint shallwill be referred to law 
enforcement for investigation. 
 
The district has adopted the following procedures to promptly and fairly address 
concerns and complaints about unlawful discrimination and/or harassment. Complaints 
may be submitted orally or in writing. 
 
Definitions 
 
a.1. “Compliance officer” means a district employee designated by the Board to 

receive complaints of alleged unlawful discrimination and harassment. The 
compliance officer shallmust be identified by name, address, telephone number, 
and email address. See (see exhibit AC-E-1.). If the designated individual is not 
qualified or is unable to act as such, the superintendent shallmust designate 
another district employee who shallwill serve until a successor is appointed by the 
Board. 

 
b.2. “Aggrieved individual” shall meanmeans a student, the parents or guardians of a 

student under the age of 18 acting on behalf of a student, an employee of the 
district, or member of the public who is directly affected by and/or is witness to an 
alleged violation of Board policies prohibiting unlawful discrimination or 
harassment. 

 
Compliance officer’s duties 
 
The compliance officer shall beis responsible for conducting an investigation and 
coordinating all complaint procedures and processes for any alleged violation of federal 
or state statute or Board policy prohibiting unlawful discrimination or harassment. The 
compliance officer’s duties shall include: providing notice to students, parents/guardians 
of students, employees, and the general public concerning the compliance process,; 
providing training for district staff regarding the prohibition of discrimination/harassment 
in all district programs, activities, and employment practices,; disseminating information 
concerning the forms and procedures for the filing of complaints,; ensuring the prompt 
investigation of all complaints,;      coordinating hearing procedures,; and identifying and 
addressing any patterns or systemic problems that arise during the review of complaints. 
The compliance officer may delegate any or all of the foregoing responsibilities as 
necessary and/or appropriate under the circumstances. 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left + 
4.53", Left +  5.81", Left +  0.25", Right +  3.5", Left + Not
at  0.25" +  3.5"

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black



File:  AC-R 
 

 
2 of 6 

 
Complaint procedure 
 
An aggrieved individual is encouraged to promptly report the incident as provided in 
Board policy and this regulation. All reports received by teachers, counselors, principals, 
or other district employees shallmust be promptly forwarded to the compliance officer. If 
the compliance officer is the individual alleged to have engaged in the prohibited 
conduct, the complaint shallmust be forwarded to the superintendent. 
 
Any aggrieved individual may file with the compliance officer a complaint charging the 
district, another student, or any district employee with unlawful discrimination or 
harassment. Complaints may be made orally or in writing. Persons who wish to file a 
written complaint shall beare encouraged to use the district’s complaint form. 
 
All complaints shallmust include a detailed description of the alleged events, the dates 
the alleged events occurred, and names of the parties involved, including any witnesses. 
The complaint shallmust be made as soon as possible after the incident. 
 
The compliance officer shallmust confer with the aggrieved individual and/or the alleged 
victimtarget of the unlawful discrimination or harassment as soon as is reasonably 
possible, but no later than five calendar days following the compliance officer’s receipt of 
the complaint in order to obtain a clear understanding of the basis of the complaint. 
 
Within five calendar days following the initial meeting with the aggrieved individual 
and/or alleged victimtarget, the compliance officer shallmust attempt to meet with the 
individual alleged to have engaged in the prohibited conduct and, if this individual is a 
student, his or hertheir parents/guardians in order to obtain a response to the complaint. 
Such person(s) shallmust be informed of all allegations that, in the compliance officer’s 
judgment, are necessary to achieve a full and accurate disclosure of material information 
or to otherwise resolve the complaint. 
 
At the initial meetings, the compliance officer shallmust explain the avenues for informal 
and formal action, provide a description of the complaint process, and explain that both 
the victimtarget and the individual alleged to have engaged in prohibited conduct have 
the right to exit the informal process and request a formal resolution of the matter at any 
time. The compliance officer shallmust also explain that whether or not the individual 
files a written complaint or otherwise requests action, the district is required by law to 
take steps to correct the unlawful discrimination or harassment and to prevent recurring 
unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation against anyone who makes a report or 
participates in an investigation. The compliance officer shallmust also explain that any 
request for confidentiality shallwill be honored so long as doing so does not preclude the 
district from responding effectively to prohibited conduct and preventing future prohibited 
conduct. 
 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Italic, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black



File:  AC-R 
 

 
3 of 6 

Informal action 
 
If the aggrieved individual and/or the individual alleged to have engaged in the prohibited 
conduct requests that the matter be resolved in an informal manner and/or the 
compliance officer believes that the matter is suitable to such resolution, the compliance 
officer may attempt to resolve the matter informally through mediation, counseling, or 
other non-disciplinary means. If both parties feel a resolution has been achieved through 
the informal process, then no further compliance action must be taken. No party 
shallmay be compelled to resolve a complaint of unlawful discrimination or harassment 
informally and either party may request an end to an informal process at any time. 
Informal resolution shallmay not be used to process complaints against a district 
employee and shallmay not be used between students where the underlying offense 
involves sexual assault or other actacts of violence. 
 
Formal action 
 
If informal resolution is inappropriate, unavailable, or unsuccessful, the compliance 
officer shallmust promptly investigate the allegations to determine whether and/or to 
what extent, unlawful discrimination or harassment has occurred. The compliance officer 
may consider the following types of information in determining whether unlawful 
discrimination or harassment occurred: 
 

8.a. statements by any witness to the alleged incident,;      
 

9.b. evidence about the relative credibility of the parties involved,;      
 

10.c. evidence relative to whether the individual alleged to have engaged in 
prohibited conduct has been found to have engaged in prohibited conduct against 
others,;      

 
11.d. evidence of the aggrieved individual and/or alleged victim’starget’s reaction or 

change in behavior following the alleged prohibited conduct,;      
 

12.e. evidence about whether the alleged victimtarget and/or aggrieved individual 
took action to protest the conduct,;      

 
13.f. evidence and witness statements or testimony presented by the parties 

involved,;      
 

14.g. other contemporaneous evidence,; and/or 
 

15.h. any other evidence deemed relevant by the compliance officer. 
 
In deciding whether conduct is a violation of law or policy, all relevant circumstances 
shallmust be considered by the compliance officer, including: 
 

1.a. the degree to which the 
conduct affected one or more student’s education or one or more employee’s 
work environment,;      

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Level 1, Line spacing:  single, Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at: 
0.5", Don't hyphenate, Font Alignment: Top, Border: Top:
(No border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right:
(No border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  0.5", Left + 
4.53", Left +  5.81", Left +  0.63", Left,  0" Horizontal 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Level 1, Line spacing:  single, Outline
numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at: 
0.5", Don't hyphenate, Font Alignment: Top, Border: Top:
(No border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right:
(No border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  0.5", Left + 
4.53", Left +  5.81", Left +  0.63", Left,  0" Horizontal 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black



File:  AC-R 
 

 
4 of 6 

 
2.b. the type, frequency, and 

duration of the conduct,;      
 

3.c. the identity of and 
relationship between the individual alleged to have engaged in the prohibited 
conduct and the aggrieved individual and/or alleged victim,target                

 
4.d. the number of individuals 

alleged to have engaged in the prohibited conduct and number of victimstargets 
of the prohibited conduct,;      

 
5.e. the ageages of the 

individual alleged to have engaged in the prohibited conduct and the aggrieved 
individual and/or alleged victim,target                

 
6.f. the size of the school, location of the incident, and context in which it occurred,; 

and      
 

7.g. other incidents at the 
school. 

 
The compliance officer shallmust prepare a written report containing findings and 
recommendations, as appropriate, and submit the report to the superintendent within five 
calendar days following the compliance officer’s receipt of the complaint or five calendar 
days following the termination of the informal resolution process. 
 
The compliance officer’s report shallmust be advisory and shallmust not bind the 
superintendent or the district to any particular course of action or remedial measure. 
Within five calendar days after receiving the compliance officer’s findings and 
recommendationrecommendations, the superintendent or designee shallmust determine 
any sanctions or other actionactions deemed appropriate, including if appropriate 
recommendations to the Board for disciplinary or other action. 
 
To the extent permitted by federal and state law, all parties, including the 
parents/guardians of all students involved, shallmust be notified in writing of the final 
outcome of the investigation and all steps taken by the district within ten calendar days 
following the superintendent’s and/or Board’s determination. 
 
Hearing procedure 
 
For allegations under Section 504 and as otherwise required by law, the aggrieved 
individual may request a hearing. This hearing procedure will not address guilt or 
innocence or disciplinary consequences, which shallare instead be governed by the 
Board’s discipline policies and procedures. 
 
The district shallmust retain a person to serve as the impartial hearing officer, who 
shallmust      be knowledgeable about Section 504 and/or the ADA, if applicable. The 
hearing shallmust be informal and shallmust be recorded. Formal rules of evidence 

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted ...

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black



File:  AC-R 
 

 
5 of 6 

shalldo not apply. A student shall beis entitled to be represented by his/hertheir  
parent/legal guardian or by an attorney. An employee shall beis entitled to be 
represented by an attorney or other representative of his/hertheir choice. The 
complainant may appear at the hearing and shall beis entitled to present testimony and 
other evidence. A district representative shallis likewise be entitled to present testimony 
and other evidence. The hearing shallmust be closed to the public. 
 
Within five calendar days after the hearing, the hearing officer shallmust      issue a 
written decision based upon evidence presented at the administrative hearing, including 
any remedial or corrective action deemed appropriate. Remedial actions shall include 
measures designed to stop the unlawful discrimination or harassment, correct its 
negative impact on the affected individual, ensure that the conduct does not recur, and 
restore lost educational opportunities. 
 
After the hearing officer has issued his or herthe decision, the recording of the hearing, 
all physical and documentary evidence, and all other items comprising the record of the 
hearing shallmust be returned to the district. 
 
Either party may seek review of the hearing officer’s decision in a court of competent 
jurisdiction, in accordance with applicable law and applicable timelines for requesting 
such review. 
 
Nothing contained herein shallmay be interpreted to confer upon any person the right to 
a hearing independent of a Board policy, administrative procedure, statute, rule, 
regulation, or agreement expressly conferring such right. This process shall applyapplies, 
unless the context otherwise requires and unless the requirements of another policy, 
procedure, statute, rule, regulation, or agreement expressly contradicts with this 
process, in which event the terms of the contrary policy, procedure, law, rule, regulation 
or agreement shallwill govern. 
 
 
 
 
Outside agencies 
 
In addition to, or as an alternative to, filing a complaint pursuant to this regulation, a 
person may file a discrimination complaint with the U.S. Department of Education, Office 
for Civil Rights (OCR); the Federal Office of Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (EEOC); or the Colorado Civil Rights Division (CCRD). The addresses of 
these agencies are listed below. 
 
Denver Office for Civil Rights (OCR), U.S. Department of Education, 1244 Speer Blvd., 
Suite 310, Denver, CO 80204-3582. Toll Free:  800-262-4845 English/Spanish. 
Telephone:  303-844-5695. Fax:  303-844-4303. TTY:  303-844-3417. Email:  OCR 
.Denver @ed.gov      
 
Federal Office of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), 303 E. 17th 
Avenue, Suite 410, Denver, CO 80203. Toll FreeTelephone:  800-669-4000. Fax:  303-

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.25", Left + 
4.57", Left +  5.83", Left + Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial



File:  AC-R 
 

 
6 of 6 

866-1085. TTY:  800-669-6820. Email:  egovASL Video Phone: 844-234-5122. Website     
:  https://publicportal.eeoc.gov.eas/portal/      
 
Colorado Civil Rights Division (CCRD), 1560 Broadway, Suite 1050825, Denver, CO 
80202. Toll Free:  800-262-4845. Telephone:  303-894-2997. or 800-886-7675. Fax:  
303-894-7830. Email:  dora_CCRD@state.co.usEmail:  DORA_CCRD@state.co.us 
(general inquiries), DORA_CCRDIntake@state.co.us (intake unit) 
 
Adopted: July 2007 
Revised: March 2012 
Revised: August: 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.25", Left + 
4.57", Left +  5.83", Left

Formatted: Font: Arial, Font color: Black

mailto:DORA_CCRD@state.co.us
mailto:DORA_CCRDIntake@state.co.us


File:  AC-R-2 
 
 
 

 
1 of 4 

Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 
(Complaint and Compliance Process) 

 
 
The district is committed to maintaining a learning environment that is free from sex-
based discrimination, including sexual harassment. It is a violation of policy for any staff 
member to harass students or for students to harass other students through conduct or 
communications of a sexual nature, or to retaliate against anyone that reports sex-based 
discrimination or harassment or participates in a harassment investigation. 
 
Definitions 
 
For purposes of this regulation, these terms have the following meanings: 
 

● “Complainant” means an individual who is alleged to be the target of 

conduct that could constitute sex-based discrimination or sexual harassment. 

 
● “Decision Maker” means an individual(s) who assess the relevant 

evidence, including party and witness credibility, to decide if the district has met 

the burden of proof showing the respondent to be responsible for the alleged 

sexual harassment. The decision maker may not be the Title IX Coordinator or 

the investigator. The district’s decision maker is the Superintendent. 

 
● “Education Program or Activity” means locations, events, or 

circumstances over which the district exercises substantial control over both the 

complainant and respondent and the context in which the sexual harassment 

occurs. 

  
● “Investigator” means an individual trained to objectively evaluate the 

credibility of parties and witnesses, synthesize all available evidence – including 

both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence – and take into account the unique and 

complex circumstances of each situation. The investigator may be the Title IX 

Coordinator, but cannot be the decision maker. 

 
● “Respondent” means an individual who has been reported to be the 

perpetrator of conduct that could constitute sex-based discrimination or sexual 

harassment. 

 
● “Sexual Harassment” means conduct on the basis of sex that 

satisfies one or more of the following: 

 
1. A school employee conditioning education benefits on participation in 

unwelcome sexual conduct (i.e., quid pro quo); 

 



File:  AC-R 
 

 
2 of 4 

2. Unwelcome conduct that a reasonable person would determine is so 

severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person 

equal access to the school's education program or activity; or 

 
3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking. 

 
● “Supportive Measures” mean non-disciplinary, non-punitive 

individualized services offered as appropriate, as reasonably available, without 

fee or charge, to the complainant or respondent, before or after the filing of a 

formal complaint or where no formal complaint has been filed. 

 
● “Title IX Coordinator” means the employee designated by a recipient 

to coordinate its efforts to comply with Title IX responsibilities. The district's Title 

IX Coordinator is: 

 

Mike Vagher, Director of Safety/Security/Athletics 
328 West 5th Street 
Leadville, CO 80461 

Office:  719-486-6808 / Cell:  719-293-0112 

 
 
Filing a complaint 
 
A complainant, or a parent or guardian with the legal right to act on the complainant’s 
behalf, may file a complaint. Complaints must be filed in writing and signed by the 
complainant. Forms for this purpose are available at district website, district and school 
offices. Completed forms must be filed with the Title IX Coordinator. If a complaint form 
is given to a district employee, the district employee will promptly forward the complaint 
to the Title IX Coordinator. An alternate will be designated in the event it is claimed that 
the respondent is the one who committed the alleged discrimination or some other 
conflict of interest exists. Complaints must be filed within 180 days of the event giving 
rise to the complaint or from the date the complainant could reasonably become aware 
of such occurrence. The complainant will receive assistance as needed in filing a 
complaint. 
 
Retaliation against the complainant, respondent, or any person who filed a complaint or 
participated in an investigation, is prohibited. Individuals found to have engaged in 
retaliatory behavior will be subject to disciplinary measures. 
 
Investigation  
 
Once a complaint is received, the Title IX Coordinator or investigator (“investigator”) will 
first determine if the alleged conduct occurred in the district’s education program or 
activity. If the alleged conduct is not part of the education program or activity, the 
complaint must be dismissed under these procedures. A dismissal does not prohibit the 
complainant from pursuing other remedies under state or federal law or local board 



File:  AC-R 
 

 
3 of 4 

policy, nor does it prohibit the district from addressing the allegations in any manner the 
district deems appropriate. 
 
Following this determination, the investigator will begin the investigation in a reasonably 
prompt manner and adhere to the following: 
 

● The investigator must apply the “presumption of innocence” standard during the 

course of the investigation. 

 
● The investigator must adhere to all timeframes. If a timeframe cannot be met, 

the investigator will notify the complainant, respondent, and decision maker. 

 
● The investigator will protect the complainant from inappropriate questions and 

evidence about the complainant’s prior sexual history. 

 
● The investigator must provide written notice of the allegations to the parties 

involved. 

 
● The investigation may also include, but is not limited to, the following: 

 
○ Implementation of supportive measures for both the complainant and 

the respondent; 

○ A request for the complainant to provide a written statement regarding 

the nature of the complaint; 

○ A request for respondent to provide a written statement; 

○ A request for witnesses identified during the course of the investigation 

to provide a written statement; 

○ Interviews of the complainant, respondent, or witnesses; and 

○ Review and collection of documentation or information deemed 

relevant to the investigation. 

 

 Within a reasonably prompt timeframe, the investigator must issue a 

report to the decision maker. After finalizing the report, the investigator will provide a 

copy to the complainant and respondent and will wait ten days prior to providing the 

report to the decision. The investigator’s report must be advisory and must not bind 

the decision maker to any particular course of action or remedial measure. 

 
Decision 
 
The decision maker will apply the preponderance of the evidence standard when making 
a decision and must notify the complainant and respondent of the decision. The decision 
must include a written determination regarding responsibility, explain how and why the 
decision maker reached the conclusions outlined in the report, and detail any disciplinary 
measures taken in response to the conduct. The decision of the decision maker in no 



File:  AC-R 
 

 
4 of 4 

way prejudices either the complainant or the respondent from seeking redress through 
state or federal agencies, as provided in law. 
 

Appeal 

 

The investigation is closed after the decision maker issues a decision, unless either 
party appeals the decision within 10 days by making a written request to the decision 
maker detailing why the decision should be reconsidered. 
 

Notice and training 
 
To reduce unlawful discrimination and harassment and ensure a respectful school 
environment, the administration is responsible for providing notice of these procedures 
to all district schools and departments. The policy and complaint procedures must be 
prominently posted on the district’s website, referenced in student and employee 
handbooks and otherwise be made available to all students, staff, and members of the 
public through electronic or hard-copy distribution. 
 
All students and district employees will receive periodic training related to recognizing 
and preventing sexual harassment. District employees must receive additional periodic 
training related to handling reports of sexual harassment. Training materials are 
available to the public on the district’s website. 
 
Adopted: August 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 



File:  JBB 
 
 
 

 
1 of 3 

Sexual Harassment 
 
 
The district recognizes that sexual harassment can interfere with a student’s academic 
performance and emotional and physical well-being and that preventing and remedying 
sexual harassment in schools is essential to ensure a nondiscriminatory, safe 
environment in which students can learn. In addition, sexual harassment is recognized 
as a form of sex discrimination and thus is a violation of the laws that prohibit sex 
discrimination, as addressed in the Board’s policy concerning unlawful discrimination 
and harassment. 
 
District’s commitment 
 
The district is committed to maintaining a learning environment that is free from sexual 
harassment. It shall beis a violation of policy for any staff member to harass students or 
for students to harass other students through conduct or communications of a sexual 
nature, or to retaliate against anyone that reports sexual harassment or participates in a 
harassment investigation. 
 
The district shall investigate all indications, informal reports and formal grievances of 
sexual harassment by students, staff or third-parties and appropriate corrective action 
shall be taken. Corrective action includes taking all reasonable steps to end the 
harassment, to make the harassed student whole by restoring lost educational 
opportunities, to prevent harassment from recurring and to prevent retaliation against 
anyone who reports sexual harassment or participates in a harassment investigation. 
 
Sexual harassment prohibited 
 
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal, non-verbal or 
physical conduct of a sexual nature may constitute sexual harassment, even if the 
harasser and the student being harassed are the same sex and whether or not the 
student resists or submits to the harasser, when: 
 
1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition 

of a student’s participation in an education program or activity. 
 
2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by a student is used as the basis for 

education decisions affecting the student. 
 
3. Such conduct is sufficiently severe, persistent or pervasive such that it limits a 

student’s ability to participate in or benefit from an education program or activity or 
it creates a hostile or abusive educational environment. For a one-time incident to 
rise to the level of harassment, it must be severe. 

 
Any conduct of a sexual nature directed by a student toward a staff member or by a staff 
member to a student is presumed to be unwelcome and shall constitute sexual 
harassment. 
 
Acts of verbal or physical aggression, intimidation or hostility based on sex, but not 
involving conduct of a sexual nature may also constitute sexual harassment. 
 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  1.26", Left +  4.53", Left +  5.81", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black



File:  JBB 
 

 
2 of 3 

Sexual harassment as defined above may include, but is not limited to: 
 

1. sex-oriented verbal "kidding," abuse or harassment, 
 

2. pressure for sexual activity, 
 

3. repeated remarks to a person with sexual implications, 
 

4. unwelcome touching, such as patting, pinching or constant brushing against the 
body of another, 

 
5. suggesting or demanding sexual involvement, accompanied by implied or 

explicit threats concerning one's grades or similar personal concerns, 
 

6. sexual violence. 
 
Sexual harassment defined  
 
Pursuant to Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, “sexual harassment” 
means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the following:  
 

1. A school employee conditioning education benefits on participation in unwelcome 
sexual conduct (i.e., quid pro quo); 
       

2. Unwelcome conduct that a reasonable person would determine is so severe, 
pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal 
access to the school's education program or activity; or 
  

3. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking.  
      
Pursuant to state law, “harassment” means creating a hostile environment based on an 
individual's sex.                                                
 
Reporting, investigation, and sanctions 
 
Students are encouraged to report all incidences of sexual harassment to either a 
teacher, counselor, or principal in their school building and file a complaint, through the 
district’s complaint and compliance process addressing sex-based discrimination. All 
reports and indications from students, district employees, and third parties shallmust be 
forwarded to the compliance officer.Title IX Coordinator.  
 
The district will initiate and conduct an investigation in accordance with the appropriate 
procedures addressing sex-based discrimination and sexual harassment.  
      
All matters involving sexual harassment reports shallmust remain confidential to the 
extent possible as long as doing so is in accordance with applicable law and policy and 
does not preclude the district from responding effectively to the harassment or 
preventing future harassment. Filing of a complaint or otherwise reporting sexual 
harassment shallwill not reflect upon the individual's status or affect grades. 
 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left + 
4.53", Left +  5.81", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Not Bold, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing: 
single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border), Tab
stops:  1.26", Left +  4.53", Left +  5.81", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black



File:  JBB 
 

 
3 of 3 

In determining whether alleged conduct constitutes sexual      
The district will take appropriate corrective action to: make the harassed student whole 
by restoring lost educational opportunities; prevent harassment, the totality of the 
circumstances, the nature of the conduct, and the context in which the alleged conduct 
occurred shall be investigated. 
 
Any student found to have engaged in from recurring; or prevent retaliation against 
anyone who reports sexual harassment shall be subject to discipline, including, but not 
limited to, being placed under or participates in a remedial discipline plan, suspension or 
expulsion, subject to applicable procedural requirements and in accordance with 
applicable law. Conduct of a sexual nature directed toward students shall, in appropriate 
circumstances, be reported as child abuse forharassment investigation by appropriate 
authorities in conformity with applicable law and Board policy..      
 
Notice and training 
 
NoticeTo reduce unlawful discrimination and harassment and ensure a respectful school 
environment, the administration is responsible for providing notice of this policy shall be 
circulatedand complaint procedures to all district schools and departments and 
incorporated. The policy and complaint procedures must be referenced in all student and 
employee handbooks and otherwise be made available to all students, staff, and 
members of the public through electronic or hard-copy distribution. 
 
All students and district employees shallwill receive periodic training related to 
recognizing and preventing sexual harassment. District employees shallmust receive 
additional periodic training related to handling reports of sexual harassment. Training 
materials are available to the public on the district’s website.       
 
Adopted: August 2000 
Revised: March 2012 
Revised: August 2020 
 
LEGAL REF.: 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. (Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972)      
 C.R.S. 22-32-109 (1)(ll) (Board duty to adopt written policies prohibiting 

discrimination)      
C.R.S. 24-34-402 (definition of “harass” in employment practices) 

 
CROSS REFS.: AC, Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity 
  AC-R, Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity (Complaint and 

Compliance Process) 
  AC-R2, Sex-Based Discrimination and Sexual Harassment 

Investigation Procedures 
  AC-E-1, Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity (Sample Notice) 
  JLF, Reporting Child Abuse/Child Protection 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Line spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No
border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No
border), Between : (No border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left + 
4.53", Left +  5.81", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Line spacing:  At least 0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Indent: Hanging:  0", Line spacing:  At least
0.05 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  -0", Hanging:  1.19", Line spacing:
 At least 0.05 pt, Tab stops: Not at  1.25"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Italic

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  -0", Hanging:  0", Line
spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No
border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left +  4.53", Left +  5.81", Left +
 1.25", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  -0", Hanging:  0", Line
spacing:  single, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No
border), Tab stops:  1.26", Left +  4.53", Left +  5.81", Left +
 1.25", Left

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 12 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, Font color: Black



File:  JII 
 
 
 

 
 

Student Concerns, Complaints and Grievances 
 
Decisions made by school personnel which students believe are unfair or in violation of 
pertinent Board policies or individual school rules may be appealed to the principal or a 
designated representative or by following the specific appeal process created for 
particular complaints. 
 
Grievance and investigation procedures are available for students to receive prompt 
and equitable resolution of allegations of discriminatory actions on the basis of 
disability, race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, 
religion, ancestry, or need for special services.   
 
Adopted:  Prior to August 2016 
Revised:  August 2016 
Reviewed:  August 2020 
 
CROSS REFS.: 
 Administrative policies: 
  AC-R, Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity (Complaint and Compliance Process) – 

Regulation 

  IHCDA, Concurrent Enrollment 

  JB, Equal Educational Opportunities 

  JBB, Sexual Harassment 

  JICEA, School-Related Student Publications (School Publications Code) 

  JICEC, Student Distribution of Noncurricular Materials 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 



File:  JLCD 
 
 
 

 
1 of 2 

Administering Medications to Students 
 
If under exceptional circumstances a student is required to take medication during 
school hours, only the school nurse or the nurse’s designee may administer the 
medication to the student in compliance with the following regulation. In the alternative, 
the parent/guardian may come to school to administer the medication. 
 
1. All directives of the accompanying policy shall be followed. 
 
2. Written orders from the student's health care practitioner with prescriptive authority 

under Colorado law shall be on file in the school stating: 
 

a. Student’s name 
b. Name of medication 
c. Dosage 
d. Purpose of the medication 
e. Time of day medication is to be given 
f. Anticipated number of days it needs to be given at school 
g. Possible side effects 

 
3. The medication shall be brought to school in a container appropriately labeled by 

the pharmacy or health care practitioner. 
 
4. An individual record shall be kept of medications administered by school 

personnel. 
 
5. Medication shall be stored in a clean, locked cabinet or container. Emergency 

medications (such as epinephrine) shall be inaccessible to students, but 
immediately available to trained school personnel and not in a locked cabinet. 

 
Unless these requirements are met, medication will not be administered to students at 
school. 
 
Self-administration of medication for asthma, allergies, anaphylaxis, or 

migraine/headache 
 
A school shall permit a student to possess and self-administer medication, such as an 
inhaler or epinephrine, if all of the following conditions are met: 
 
1. Written authorization signed by the student’s health care practitioner must be on 

file with the school which shall include the student’s name; the name, purpose, 
prescribed dosage, frequency, and length of time between dosages of the 
medication(s) to be self-administered; and confirmation that the student has been 
instructed and is capable of self-administration of the medication. 

 
2. The school nurse or school administrator, in consultation with the school nurse, 

the student’s health care practitioner, and the student’s parent/guardian 
collaborate to make an assessment of the student’s knowledge of his or her 
condition and ability to self-administer medication. 

 
3. A written statement signed by the student’s parent/guardian must be on file with 

the school, which shall include permission for the student to self-administer his/her 



File:  JLCD 
 

 
2 of 2 

medication and a release from liability for any injury arising from the student’s self-
administration of such medication. 

 
4. A written contract between the school nurse, school administrator, the student, 

and the student’s parent/guardian must be on file with the school, assigning levels 
of responsibility to the student’s parent/guardian, student, and school employees. 

 
A treatment plan authorizing a student to possess and self-administer medication for 
asthma, anaphylaxis or migraine/headache shall be effective only for the school year in 
which it is approved. 
 
A student shall report to the school nurse or designee or to some adult at the school 
immediately after the student uses an epinephrine auto-injector during school hours. 
Upon receiving such report from a student, the school nurse, designee, or other adult 
will provide appropriate follow-up care to the student, which shall include making a 911 
emergency call. 
 
Adopted:  insert adoption date 
Revised:  September 2018 
Revised:  date of manual revision 
 
LEGAL REFS.: C.R.S. 12-38-132 (delegation of nursing tasks) 

 C.R.S. 12-38-132.3 (school nurses - over-the-counter medication) 

 C.R.S. 22-1-119 (no liability for adverse drug reactions/side effects) 

 C.R.S. 22-1-119.1 (Board may adopt policy to acquire a stock supply of opiate 

antagonists) 
 C.R.S. 22-1-119.3 (3)(c), (d) (no student possession or self-administration of 

medical marijuana, but school districts must permit the student’s primary caregiver to 

administer medical marijuana to the student on school grounds, on a school bus or at 

a school-sponsored event) 

 C.R.S. 22-1-119.5 (Colorado Schoolchildren’s Asthma, Food Allergy, and 

Anaphylaxis Health Management Act) 

 C.R.S. 22-2-135 (Colorado School Children’s Food Allergy and Anaphylaxis 

Management Act) 

 C.R.S. 24-10-101 et seq. (Colorado Governmental Immunity Act) 

 1 CCR 301-68 (State Board of Education rules regarding student possession and 

administration of asthma, allergy and anaphylaxis management medications or other 

prescription medications) 

 6 CCR 1010-6, Rule 6.13 (requirements for health services in schools) 

 
CROSS REFS.: 
 Administrative policies: 
  JICH, Drug and Alcohol Involvement by Students 

  JKD/JKE, Suspension/Expulsion of Students (and Other Disciplinary Interventions) 
  JLCDA, Students with Food Allergies 

  JLCDB, Administration of Medical Marijuana to Qualified Students 

  JLCE, First Aid and Emergency Medical Care 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 



File:  JLCD-R 
 
 
 

 
1 of 2 

Administering Medications to Students 
 
If under exceptional circumstances a student is required to take medication during 
school hours, only the school nurse or the nurse’s designee may administer the 
medication to the student in compliance with the following regulation. In the alternative, 
the parent/guardian may come to school to administer the medication. 
 
1. All directives of the accompanying policy shall be followed. 
 
2. Written orders from the student's health care practitioner with prescriptive authority 

under Colorado law shall be on file in the school stating: 
 

a. Student’s name 
b. Name of medication 
c. Dosage 
d. Purpose of the medication 
e. Time of day medication is to be given 
f. Anticipated number of days it needs to be given at school 
g. Possible side effects 

 
3. The medication shall be brought to school in a container appropriately labeled by 

the pharmacy or health care practitioner. 
 
4. An individual record shall be kept of medications administered by school 

personnel. 
 
5. Medication shall be stored in a clean, locked cabinet or container. Emergency 

medications (such as epinephrine) shall be inaccessible to students, but 
immediately available to trained school personnel and not in a locked cabinet. 

 
Unless these requirements are met, medication will not be administered to students at 
school. 
 
Self-administration of medication for asthma, allergies, anaphylaxis, or 

migraine/headache 
 
 
A school shall permit a student to possess and self-administer medication, such as an 
inhaler or epinephrine, if all of the following conditions are met: 
 
1. Written authorization signed by the student’s health care practitioner must be on 

file with the school which shall include the student’s name; the name, purpose, 
prescribed dosage, frequency, and length of time between dosages of the 
medication(s) to be self-administered; and confirmation that the student has been 
instructed and is capable of self-administration of the medication. 

 
2. The school nurse or school administrator, in consultation with the school nurse, 

the student’s health care practitioner, and the student’s parent/guardian 
collaborate to make an assessment of the student’s knowledge of his or her 
condition and ability to self-administer medication. 

 
3. A written statement signed by the student’s parent/guardian must be on file with 

the school, which shall include permission for the student to self-administer his/her 



File:  JLCD-R 
 

 
2 of 2 

medication and a release from liability for any injury arising from the student’s self-
administration of such medication. 

 
4. A written contract between the school nurse, school administrator, the student, 

and the student’s parent/guardian must be on file with the school, assigning levels 
of responsibility to the student’s parent/guardian, student, and school employees. 

 
 
A treatment plan authorizing a student to possess and self-administer medication for 
asthma, anaphylaxis or migraine/headache shall be effective only for the school year in 
which it is approved. 
 
A student shall report to the school nurse or designee or to some adult at the school 
immediately after the student uses an epinephrine auto-injector during school hours. 
Upon receiving such report from a student, the school nurse, designee, or other adult 
will provide appropriate follow-up care to the student, which shall include making a 911 
emergency call. 
 
Revised:  November 2015 
Reviewed:  August 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake County School District R-1, Leadville, Colorado 



 

 

Resolution 21-04 to Define “Actively Engaged in the Educational Process” 

 and Student Attendance for the 2020-2021 School Year  

  

Whereas, on March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization (“WHO”) characterized COVID-19 as a 

pandemic, meaning the WHO identified the worldwide spread of a new disease; and 

  

Whereas, on March 10, 2020, Governor Jared Polis declared a state of emergency and issued Executive Order 

D 2020 003 on March 11, 2020 as a safeguard against the further spread of COVID-19; and 

 

Whereas, on July 6, 2020, Governor Jared Polis amended and extended Executive Order D 2020 003 through 

Executive Order D 2020 125; and  

 

Whereas under Colo. Const. art. 9, § 15, the local Board of Education has control of instruction in its public 

schools; and 

 

Whereas, as required by 1 CCR 301-39, the Board of Education defines "educational process," in Board Policy 

IC/ICA, School Year/School Calendar/Instruction Time; and  

  

Whereas the Board of Education finds that the current pandemic creates the need for changes to instructional 

delivery and the situations under which students are considered in attendance; and 

 

Whereas the Colorado Department of Education provided guidance specific for the 2020-2021 school year, 

stating local boards may define “the educational process” as including instruction delivered electronically 

and/or other types of independent, remote work time for students that is provided under the supervision 

of a certified or licensed teacher.  

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Lake County Board of Education authorizes the following 

for the 2020-2021 school year: 

 

1. Expansion of the definition of “actively engaged in the educational process” addressed in Board Policy 

IC/ICA, School Year/School Calendar/Instruction Time to include, instruction delivered electronically 

and/or the use of other types of independent, remote work time for students provided under the 

supervision of a certified or licensed teacher and passing period time.  

 

2. Attendance will be recorded at least once daily for days when instructional hours are provided, meaning 

a student is “actively engaged in the educational process.”  

 

3. Student contact days may include remote learning days implemented as a result of public health and 

safety measures. Remote learning days may include use of: existing district online school or program, 

services provided with Colorado Digital Learning Solutions, assigned and prepared work packets, pre-

recorded classes, or other method(s) utilized by the district. Teacher-pupil instruction and contact time 

may occur in the following ways:  

 



a. Presence during in-person instruction;  

b. Assignments completed at home;  

c. Logging into the online learning platform; 

d. Signing an online form attesting to work completed at home;  

e. Student demonstration of learning;  

f. Responding to teacher emails or communication;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the district will make a good faith effort to ensure 

that the combination of in-person and/or remote learning implemented during the year allows students to learn 

the same academic content as they would have learned under the in-person bell schedule. 

 

NOW, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent is directed to keep the Board of Education 

informed of actions taken under this Resolution.  

  

NOW, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED this Resolution is in effect for the duration of the 2020-2021 school 

year, unless otherwise rescinded or extended by the Board upon a two-thirds majority vote.  

  

NOW, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that execution of this Resolution is conclusive evidence of the Board’s 

approval of this action and of the authority granted herein.   

  

Adopted and approved this 11th day of August 2020. 

  

  

  

__________________________________ 

Rod Weston, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Eudelia Contreras, President 

 

 

 

Dated: Aug. 11, 2020 

  

 



1 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into as of this 11thday of August, 2020, between 

Lake County School District R-1, a public school district and political subdivision of the State of Colorado 

("District") and Morning Star Child Care d/b/a Bright Start Learning Center, a Colorado nonprofit 

corporation (“BSLC”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, District is the owner of certain real property and improvements situated in Lake 

County, Colorado and located at 328 West 5th Street, Leadville, Colorado 80461, on which is located the 

District’s administrative office (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, BSLC is a childcare facility for children ages 1-5 that serves the Lake County community; 

and  

WHEREAS, BSLC desires to lease space within the Property for the operation of its program for 

the 2020-2021 school year; and  

WHEREAS, the District desires to lease space within the Property subject to the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement.    

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

District and BSLC agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into and 

made part of this Agreement. 

2. Definitions. The following capitalized terms used in this Agreement have the following 

meanings:  

a. “Building” means the District’s administrative office building located on the 

Property.  

b. “Building Rules and Regulations” means the rules and regulations for the Building 

set forth in “Exhibit B”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference, as amended from time to time.  The term “Tenant” as used in the 

Building Rules and Regulations shall refer to BSLC.  If there is a conflict between 

the Building Rules and Regulations and this Agreement, this Agreement shall 

control.  

c. “Common Areas” means the entrances, exists, driveways, curbs, walkways, 

hallways, parking areas, landscaped areas, restrooms, and like areas or facilities 



which are located on the Property and in the Building, and which are designated 

by the District from time to time as areas or facilities available for the 

nonexclusive use in common by BSLC, its officers, employees, agents, and 

invitees. 

d. “Premises” means the areas (two rooms, a cubicle, and a courtyard) depicted on 

“Exhibit A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, consisting 

of approximately 11,000 square feet.  

e. “Property” means the real property located at 328 West 5th Street, Leadville, 

Colorado 80461.  

3. Lease. District hereby leases to BSLC, and BSLC hereby leases from District, the Premises 

for the term of this Agreement.  

4. Term.  Subject to earlier termination as provided herein, the term of this Agreement shall 

commence on 12:01 a.m. on August 15, 2020 and shall end at 11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2021 (the “Term”).  

5. Rent.  In consideration for the Lease of the Premises and other rights under this 

Agreement, BSLC shall pay to District base rent in the amount of $500.00 per month (“Base Rent”), which 

shall be payable in advance, without offset, deduction, or abatement, on the first day of each month 

during the Term.  BSLC’s obligation to pay Base Rent shall be prorated at the commencement of the Term. 

Base Rent shall be paid to District at the address set forth for District in Section 31 of this Agreement, or 

at such other place as District may designate from time to time.     

6. Quiet Enjoyment.  District covenants and agrees that, provided BSLC is not in default of 

and keeps, observes, and performs BSLC’s covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement, BSLC 

shall have quiet and peaceable possession of the Premises, and such possession and right use shall not be 

unreasonably disturbed or interfered with by District. 

7. Use.  BSLC shall use the Premises for the purpose of operating a childcare facility for 

children ages 1-5 and for no other purpose.  BSLC shall comply with (i) applicable federal, state, and local 

law, (ii) District building and use polices as adopted by its Board of Education or Superintendent of Schools 

and amended from time to time, and (iii) Building Rules and Regulations. In addition, BSLC shall (x) develop 

and administer a secure entry system to permit parent entry into the Building in accordance with 

applicable law, (y) develop and administer a system for ensuring that adults and children do not use the 

Building restrooms at the same time in accordance with applicable law, and (z) monitor its students in the 

Common Areas at all times.   

8. Right to Use Common Areas. District grants BSLC and its employees, agents, and invitees,  

the non-exclusive right, together with all other occupants of the Building and their employees, agents, 

and invitees, to use the Common Area during the Term, subject to applicable laws and Building Rules and 

Regulations. BSLC may install up to two (2) refrigerators in the lounge/breakroom that shall be for the 

exclusive use of BSLC and its employees, agents, and invitees.  



9. Acceptance of Present Condition.  BSLC has inspected the Premises and accepts the same 

in the present condition. Taking possession of the Premises by BSLC shall be conclusive evidence as against 

BSLC that the Premises were in good and satisfactory condition when possession was delivered to BSLC.  

10. Utilities.  District shall not be liable for any personal injury or any property damage 

resulting from the negligent operation or faulty installation of utility services provided for use on the 

Premises, nor shall District be liable for any injury or damage suffered by BSLC as a result of the failure to 

make necessary repairs to the utility facilities.  BSLC shall be liable for any injury or damages, including 

freezing, stoppage, or blockage, to the equipment or service lines of the utility suppliers that are located 

on the Premises or the Property resulting from the negligent or willful acts of BSLC, or its officers, 

employees, agents, or invitees.   

11. Taxes. The Property is currently tax exempt. To the extent BSLC’s permitted use may not 

be tax exempt, BSLC agrees to pay Lake County (or any other applicable taxing authority) its share of taxes 

imposed and applicable to such use. 

12. Alterations or Improvements.   

a. BSLC, at BSLC’s sole cost and expense, shall install (i) a door access control system 

for the Building that is acceptable to the District in District’s sole discretion, (ii) a 

sink in Room 14 of the Premises, and (iii) a shed in the courtyard of the Premises 

(the “BSLC Improvements”). BSLC shall install the BSLC Improvements in a good 

and workmanlike manner using licensed and bonded contractors acceptable to 

the District. BSLC shall coordinate with the District to install the BSLC 

Improvements at a time and in a manner that does not interfere with the District’s 

operations at the Property.  

b. Except as set forth in this Section 12(a), BSLC shall not make any alterations, 

additions, or improvements to the Premises without first obtaining the written 

consent of District.  Any alterations, additions or improvements to the Premises, 

if approved by District, shall at once become a part of the realty and belong to 

District and shall be surrendered with the Premises. Any alterations, additions, or 

improvements shall be at BSLC’s sole cost and expense and in compliance with 

the applicable law and shall be performed by a licensed and bonded contractor 

first approved by District.   

13. Assignment and Sublease.  BSLC shall not sublet the Premises or any part thereof, or 

assign this Agreement, or any part hereof, without the prior written consent of District, which consent 

may be withheld in District’s sole and absolute discretion. 

14. Maintenance, Repair and Snow Removal.  BSLC shall, at BSLC’s sole expense, keep and 

maintain the Premises and appurtenances in good and sanitary condition and repair.  All maintenance and 

repair of the Premises, including normal and minor maintenance repair and major maintenance and repair 

of any feature or improvement constructed by BSLC shall be the full responsibility of BSLC.  BSLC, at BSLC’s 



sole expense, shall provide snow removal for the courtyard within the Premises. District, at District’s 

expense, shall provide snow removal for Common Areas.    

15. Cleaning.  During the term, BSLC will, at its sole expense, keep the Premises in a neat, 

clean, and sanitary condition, including, but not limited to, daily disposal of soiled diapers and related 

waste in the Property dumpster. District, at District expense, shall furnish BSLC with reasonable janitorial 

services during the week, except when the Building is closed.   

16. Surrender of Property.  BSLC, at BSLC’s sole cost and expense, shall, at the termination or 

expiration of this Agreement, surrender and deliver the Premises in good order and condition as when 

the same were entered upon, loss by fire, inevitable accident or ordinary wear and tear excepted.  Except 

as otherwise provided in writing by District, BSLC’s obligations under this Section 16 include, but are not 

limited to, removing and disposing of all improvements constructed on the Premises.  Such removal and 

disposal shall be in accordance with applicable law.  If BSLC fails to comply with Section 16, District may 

(i) remove all improvements and BSLC real and personal property from the Premises and store the same 

in a public warehouse or elsewhere at BSLC’s expense, (ii) deem all such improvements and property to 

be abandoned, and, in such event, District may dispose of such improvements and property at BSLC’s 

expense, free from any claim by BSLC or anyone claiming by, through or under BSLC, and (iii) exercise any 

and all other remedies hereunder, at law and in equity all of which such remedies shall be cumulative and 

not exclusive. The provisions of this Section 16 and the BSLC’s obligations hereunder shall survive the 

expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

17. Access to Premises.  BSLC shall permit District, its agents, employees and contractors to 

have access to and enter the Premises at all reasonable and necessary times to inspect the Premises for 

any purpose connected with the repair, improvement, care and management of the Premises, or for any 

other purpose reasonable connected with District’s interest in the Premises. 

18. Liens.  BSLC shall not permit the creation of any type of lien upon the Premises, including, 

but not limited to a mechanic’s or material men’s lien.  The indemnification provisions of this Agreement 

shall apply to any such lien.  If, because of any act or omission of BSLC, and resulting from BSLC’s work on 

the Premises, any mechanic’s or other lien, charge or order for the payment of money shall be filed against 

the Premises or the Property, BSLC shall, at its own cost and expense, cause the same discharged of record 

or bonded within thirty (30) days from filing of such lien. 

19. Non-Discrimination; Compliance with Applicable Laws.  BSLC agrees that it shall not 

discriminate against any person because of race, color, creed, sex, sexual orientation, religion, national 

origin, or disability in its use of the Premises.  BSLC shall further comply with all applicable federal, state, 

and local laws, rules, and regulations.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, BSLC shall comply 

as applicable with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq (Public Law 101 – 336), and 

all applicable regulations promulgated thereunder by any regulatory agency.  The indemnification and 

termination provisions of this lease shall apply with respect to BSLC failure to comply with all applicable 

laws or regulations. 



20. Damage to Property.  In the event the Premises is destroyed or rendered wholly 

uninhabitable by fire, storm, earthquake, or other casualty not caused by the negligence or willful 

misconduct of BSLC, this Agreement shall terminate from such time except for the purpose of enforcing 

rights that may have then accrued or that may survive hereunder. Should a portion of the Premises be 

rendered uninhabitable, District shall have the option of either repairing such injured or damaged portion 

or terminating this Agreement. If District exercises its right to repair such uninhabitable portion, such part 

so injured shall be restored by District as soon as practicable, after which the Agreement will continue 

according to its terms.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, District shall have no obligation 

to repair damage to BSLC’s improvements. 

21. BSLC Default.  BSLC shall be in default of this Agreement if BSLC fails to fulfill any 

obligation or duty prescribed by this Agreement. Subject to any governing provisions of law to the 

contrary, if BSLC fails to cure the default within 30 days of the written notice, said default shall be deemed 

a material breach of this Agreement and may be grounds for eviction or other legal action to regain 

possession and recover any damages incurred by District due to BSLC’s default. In the alternative, District 

may elect to cure any default and recover the cost of such action from BSLC.  BSLC shall pay all costs, 

including, if applicable, utility disconnect and reconnect fees, damages, and expenses suffered by District 

by reason of BSLC’s default. 

22. District’s Remedies Upon Default.  If BSLC is in default under this Agreement, District shall 

have all of the remedies provided for in such circumstances by Colorado law, including without limitation, 

the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice to BSLC, in which event BSLC shall immediately 

surrender the Premises to District and, if BSLC fails to do so, District may, without prejudice to any other 

remedy which it may have for possession or arrearages in rent, enter upon and take possession of the 

Premises and expel or evict BSLC and any other person who may be occupying the Premises or any part 

thereof, by force if necessary, without being liable for any claim for damages therefor. 

23. Holdover by BSLC.  Should BSLC remain in possession of the Premises with the consent of 

District after the natural expiration of this Agreement, a new tenancy from month to month shall be 

created between District and BSLC which shall be subject to all the terms and conditions hereof, but shall 

be terminable on thirty (30) days’ written notice served by either District or BSLC on the other party.  

24. Surrender of the Property.  At the expiration or termination of this Agreement, BSLC shall 

quit and surrender the Premises in as good a state and condition as it was at the commencement of this 

Agreement, reasonable use and wear thereof and damages to the exterior by elements excepted.  

25. Insurance.  BSLC covenants and agrees to obtain and keep in full force and effect during 

the Term, and to pay the premiums and costs for, the types and kinds of insurance set forth in this Section 

25. 

a. BSLC shall procure and maintain property insurance on an “all risk” basis 

(including sprinkler leakage, if applicable) for the full replacement cost of all 

additions, improvements and alterations to the Premises made by BSLC and of all 

office equipment, furniture, trade fixtures, merchandise and all other items of 



BSLC’s property on the Premises. BSLC agrees to have such insurance policies 

endorsed to provide for a waiver of subrogation against District by the insurance 

carrier. 

b. BSLC shall procure and maintain commercial general liability insurance against 

claims for personal injury, death or property damage occurring in connection with 

the use and occupancy of the Premises and the Property, including contractual 

liability insuring the indemnification provisions contained in this lease, naming 

District as an additional insured, such insurance to afford protection to the limit 

of not less than one million dollars  

c. BSLC shall procure and maintain worker’s compensation insurance as required to 

meet the applicable laws of the State of Colorado, and employer’s liability 

insurance. 

d. BSLC covenants and agrees to obtain such other form or forms of insurance as 

BSLC or District may reasonably require from time to time in form, in amounts 

and for insurance risks as District may reasonably require.  

e. Except as otherwise approved in writing by District, all insurance obtained by 

BSLC shall be with insurance companies licensed to do business in Colorado, with 

an A.M. Best’s rating of “A” or better and approved by District, which approval 

shall not be unreasonably withheld; shall name District as additional insured on 

the commercial general liability, automobile liability, and builder’s risk policies; 

shall contain a waiver of rights of subrogation as between BSLC and District; and 

shall provide, by certificate of insurance or otherwise, that the insurance 

coverage shall not be cancelled or altered except upon thirty (30) days’ prior 

written notice to District.  Certificates of insurance and required endorsements 

obtained by BSL shall be delivered to District upon BSLC’s occupancy of the 

Premises and thereafter upon each renewal date of BSLC’s insurance. Within ten 

(10) days after District’s written request therefor, BSLC shall provide District with 

copies of all policies of insurance and endorsements required of BSLC pursuant to 

this Section 25.  

f. Before commencing work on approved improvements, BSLC and BSLC’s 

contractors,  at BSLC’s sole cost and expense, shall obtain and maintain or cause 

to be obtained and maintained worker’s compensation insurance covering all 

persons employed in connection with the work, and shall obtain liability 

insurance covering any loss or damage to persons or property arising in 

connection with any such improvements and such other insurance or bonds as 

District may reasonably require (all of which shall conform to the provisions of 

Section 25) and shall produce documentation of such within ten (10) days upon 

request by District. 



26. No Waiver of Government Immunity.  The parties hereto understand and agree that 

District is relying on, and does not waive or intent to waive by any provision of this Agreement, the 

monetary limitations, or any other rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado 

Governmental Immunity Act, Section 24-10-101, et seq. C.R.S., as from time to time amend or any other 

limitation or defense otherwise available to District, its officers, or its employees. 

27. Indemnification.  BSLC shall indemnify and hold harmless District, its directors, 

employees, and agents from and against all liability, claims, and demands, on account of injury, loss or 

damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, 

death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever, that occur on the Premises or 

Property and arise out of or are in any manner connected with BSLC’s occupancy of the Premises or use 

of the Property pursuant to this Agreement.  BSLC agrees to investigate, handle, repost to, and provide 

defense for and defend against any such liability, claim, or demand at the sole expense of BSLC.  BSLC also 

agrees to bear all other reasonable costs and expenses related thereto, including court costs and 

attorney’s fees, except as otherwise provided herein. 

28. Non-liability of District.  BSLC releases District and its directors, employees, and, agents, 

from any and all liability for any injury or damage to BSLC, or to BSLC’s property located on or about the 

Premises, resulting from any cause whatsoever, except injury or damage resulting from the gross 

negligence or willful act of District or its directors, employees, and agents. 

29. Abandonment.  If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, BSLC abandons the 

Premises, District may, at its options, and with or without terminating this Agreement, enter the Premises 

by any means without being liable for any prosecution therefor, and without becoming liable to BSLC for 

damages or for any payment of any kind whatsoever, and may, at District’s discretion, retake possession 

and make sure changes and repair as may be required, relet the Premises for the whole or any apart of 

the then unexpired term, and may receive and collect all rent payable by virtue of such reletting, and, at 

District’ option, hold BSLC liable for any difference between the rent that would have been payable under 

this Agreement during the balance of the unexpired term, and the net rent for such period realized by 

District by means of such reletting, less all expenses of such changes and repairs. 

30. Attorney’s Fees.  BSLC shall pay all reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs on behalf of 

District if any action brought by District results in a final court ruling or stipulated settlement in favor of 

District. 

31. Notices.  In every case where notice is required or permitted in this Agreement, notice 

shall be deemed sufficient if (1) personally delivered or (2) mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, 

properly addressed to the address contained herein, or such other addresses as shall be given in writing 

by one party to the other according to the provisions hereof. 

If to BSLC: 
 
WE NEED YOUR ADDRESS 
 



 
If to District: 
 
Lake County School District R-1 
Attn:  Superintendent 
328 West 5th Street 
Leadville, CO 80461 
 

32. Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.   

33. No Partnership Created.  The provisions of this Agreement are not intended to create, 
nor shall they be in any way interpreted or constructed to create, a joint venture, partnership, or other 
similar relationship between the parties. 

34. Third Parties.  This Agreement does not, and shall not be deemed or construed to, 
confer upon or grant to any third party any right to claim damages or to bring suit, action or other 
process against the parties because of any breach hereof or because of any of the terms, covenants, 
agreement and conditions herein. 

35. Complete Agreement.  It is understood and agreed that this Agreement contains the 
complete and final expression of the agreement between the parties as to the subject matter of this 
Lease and that there are no promises, representations, or inducements except as are herein set forth. 

36. Modification.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a duly authorized 
written instrument executed by the parties hereto.  Oral amendments to this Agreement are not 
permitted. 

37. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in all respects in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Colorado without regard to its conflict of laws rules.  The parties agree to the 
jurisdiction and venue of the courts of Lake County, Colorado in connection with any dispute arising out 
of or in any matter connected with this Agreement. 

38. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original for all purposes and all of which together 
shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

39. Section Headings.  Section Headings are inserted for convenience only and in no way 
limit or define interpretation to be places upon this Agreement. 

40. Waiver.  The failure of either party to exercise any of its rights under this Agreement 
shall not be a waiver of those rights.  A party waives only those rights specified in writing and signed by 
the party waiving its rights. 

41. No Recording.  This Agreement MAY NOT be recorded in the real property records. 

42. Survival of indemnity Obligations.  All indemnity obligations provided for in this 
Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement and shall be fully enforceable 
for a reasonable and foreseeable time thereafter, notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 



43. Binding Effect.  Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of the 
parties, and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 

[Signature Page Appears on Next Page] 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Agreement as of the day and year 

first above written. 

 

      LAKE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT R-1 

 

             

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

 

 

MORNING STAR CHILD CARE D/B/A BRIGHT 

START LEARNING CENTER  

 

 

              

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Premises  

 

  



EXHIBIT B 

Building Rules and Regulations  

 

1.  No sign, placard, picture, advertisement, lettering, name or notice (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as “sign”) shall be inscribed, displayed, printed or affixed on or to any part of the outside or 

inside of the Building, the Premises or the surrounding area without District’s written consent which 

shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If District gives such consent, District may regulate the manner of 

display of the sign.  District shall have the right to remove any sign that has not been approved by 

District or is being displayed in a non-approved manner without notice to and at the expense of the 

Tenant.  All approved signs shall be installed at the expense of Tenant by a person approved by District.  

Tenant shall not place anything or allow anything to be placed near the glass of any window, door, 

partition or wall that may appear unsightly from outside of Premises. 

2.  The sidewalks, paved area, exits and entrances shall not be obstructed by any of the Tenants 

or used by them for any purpose other than for ingress to and egress from their respective Premises.  

The paved areas, exits, entrances, and roof are not for the use of the general public and the District shall 

in all cases retain the right to control thereof and prevent access thereto by all persons whose presence 

in the judgment of the District shall be prejudicial to the safety, character, reputation and interests of 

the Building or its Tenants; provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to 

prevent access by persons with whom Tenant normally deals in the ordinary course of Tenant’s business 

unless such persons are engaged in illegal activities.  No Tenant and no employees, invitees, contractors 

or subcontractors of any Tenant shall go upon the roof of the Building.  

3.  Tenant shall not alter any lock or install any new additional locks or any bolts on any door of 

the Premises without the written consent of District.  

4.  The toilet rooms, urinals, wash bowls and other apparatus shall not be used for any purpose 

other than that for which they were constructed and no foreign substance of any kind whatsoever, 

including without limitation diapers, flushable wipes, and feminine hygiene products, shall be thrown 

therein.  The expense of any breakage, stoppage or damage resulting from a violation of this rule shall 

be borne by the Tenant who, or whose employees, agents, or invitees, shall have caused it.  

5.  Tenant shall not overload the floor of the Premises, shall not mark on or drive nails, screw or 

drill into the partitions, woodwork or plaster (except as may be incidental to the hanging of the wall 

decoration), and shall not in any way deface the Premises or any part thereof.   

6.  Tenant shall not use, keep, or permit to be used any food or noxious gas or substance in the 

Premises, or permit or suffer the Premises to be occupied or used in a manner offensive or 

objectionable to the District or other occupants of the Building by reason of noise, odors and/or 

vibrations, or interfere in any way with the other Tenants or those having business in the Building.  No 

animals or birds shall be brought in or kept in or about the Premises or the Building.  No Tenant shall 

disturb neighboring Buildings or Premises, or those having business with such occupants, by the use of 

any musical instruments, radio, phonograph, unusual noise or in any other way.  No Tenant shall throw 



anything out of doors or down the passageways.  No cooking shall be permitted by Tenant in the 

Premises.  

7.  Tenant shall not use or keep in the Premises, or the Building, any kerosene, gasoline or 

inflammable combustible fluid or material or use any method of heating or air conditioning other than 

that supplied by District.  

8.  The location of telephones, call boxes and other office equipment affixed to the Premises 

shall be subject to the approval of District.  

9. Tenant, upon termination of the tenancy, shall deliver to the District the keys to the Building, 

offices, rooms and toilet rooms which shall have been furnished and shall pay the District the cost of 

replacing any lost key or of changing the lock or locks opened by such lost key if District deems it 

necessary to make such change.  

10.  No Tenant shall affix to the floor of the Premises any linoleum, tile, carpet or other similar 

floor coverings except as approved by the District.  The expense of repairing any damage resulting from 

a violation of this rule or removal of any floor covering shall be borne by the Tenant.  

11.  District reserves the right to exclude or expel from the Premises any person who, in the 

judgment of Landlord, is intoxicated or under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or who shall in any 

manner do any act in violation of any of the rules and regulations of the Building. 

13.  Tenant agrees that it shall comply with all fire regulations that may be issued from time to 

time by District.  

14.  District reserves the right by written notice to Tenant, to rescind, alter or waive any rule or 

regulation at any time prescribed for the Building when, in District’s judgment, it is necessary, desirable 

or proper for the best interest of the Building or its Tenants.  

15.  Without the written consent of District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, Tenant 

shall not use the name of the Building in connection with or in promotion or advertising the business of 

Tenant except as Tenant’s address.  Tenant shall not disturb, solicit, or canvas any occupant of the 

Building and shall cooperate to prevent same.  

16.  Tenant shall be entitled to use parking spaces during working hours.  Tenant shall not park 

in driveways or loading areas nor reserved parking spaces of other tenants.  District or its agents shall 

have the right to cause to be removed any car of Tenant, its employees or agents, that may be parked in 

unauthorized areas, and Tenant agrees to save and hold harmless District, its agents and employees 

from any and all claims, losses, damages and demands asserted or arising in respect to or in connection 

with the removal of any such vehicle and for all expenses incurred by District in connection with such 

removal.  Tenant will from time to time, upon request of District, supply District with a list of license 

plate numbers of vehicles owned and/or operated by its employees and agents.  Tenant shall place and 

maintain blocks under any trailers parked in the parking facilities to protect the asphalt thereunder.     



 

4830-5756-7175, v. 2 



Lake County Board of Education 
Aug. 11, Regular Meeting  
 
Below are the academic learning plans that were provided to families to see and be able to choose 
between the models 
 
Academic Learning Plan Overview 

 
Color Band Model 

 
 The Center (PK) 

Classes are being reduced to serve 10 students and an additional 6 students from each class will 
learn from home with instructional plans provided by Center staff. There will be an online 
component supported and parent guided learning.   

 
 West Park Elementary (K-2) & Lake County Intermediate School (3-6) 

Students assigned to Group A will attend school each Monday and Wednesday (Friday if no 
school on Monday), and students assigned to Group B will attend school each Tuesday and 
Thursday. A/B group assignments will be communicated to you by your school. During the first 
three weeks, we will increase the amount of at-home activities according to age-appropriate 
levels.  Devices  will be provided for each student – iPads for K-1 and Chromebooks for 2-
6  students. Attendance will be taken daily, and staff will work onsite daily. 

 We are continuing to explore options for the days students are not at school 
and will keep you informed of updates. 

 
 Lake County High School (7-8) 

Students assigned to Group A will attend school each Monday and Wednesday (Friday if no 
school on Monday), and students assigned to Group B will attend school each Tuesday and 
Thursday. A/B group assignments will be communicated to you by your school. In-classroom 
instruction will be combined with an online experience. Devices will be provided for each 
student. Students who need assistance in the school - during their online day - will be 

accommodated. Attendance will be taken each day, and staff will work onsite daily. 

 
 Lake County High School (9-12) 

Students assigned to Group A will attend school each Monday and Wednesday (Friday if no 
school on Monday), and students assigned to Group B will attend school each Tuesday and 
Thursday. A/B group assignments will be communicated to you by your school. In-classroom 
instruction will be combined with an online experience. Devices will be provided for each 
student. Students who need assistance in the school - during their online day - will be 

accommodated. Attendance will be taken each day, and staff will work onsite daily. 

 
 Cloud City High School (formerly DOOR Program) (9-12) 

One-third of the students will attend school each day, and students are assigned to a set cohort. 
Cohorts will rotate one in-classroom day with two online learning days (Tuesdays-Thursdays). 
Mondays will be days where students can engage in their communities completing service 
learning projects as well as synchronous meetings with Cloud City staff scheduled 

individually.  Internship opportunities will be scheduled on non-classroom instructional days 
pending local public health guidance. Attendance will be taken each day.  



 

Virtual Learning Option provided by LCSD 

 
 K-8 

o Virtual instruction will include four core instructional classes and one elective 
instructional class. 

o The online experience will follow a phased-in approach with two core classes in the first 
two weeks to acclimate students to the online experience before other classes are 
added. 

o Crew teacher will be assigned and support each student including weekly check-ins 
o Special education and social emotional services will be delivered virtually 
o Programming will keep students on track for the next grade level 

 9-12 
o Virtual instruction will including programming aligned with graduation pathway plans 
o Crew teacher will be assigned and support each student including weekly check-ins 
o Special education and social emotional services will be delivered virtually 

 


	Aug, 11, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Consent agenda
	June 9, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes
	June 24, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes
	July 14, 2020 Specila Meeting Minutes
	Aug. 4, 2020Special Meeting Minutes
	Employee Status Report
	GMP amendment/FCI
	Resolution NO. 21-03 Increase in Grants Fund 22-SAFER Grant

	BEST Update
	Discussion Items
	Budget Update--COVID Funds
	Bright Start and LCSD Lease
	Administrative Policies
	JH
	JLCC
	KI
	AC
	AC-E-1
	AC-E-2
	AC-R-1
	AC-R-2
	JBB
	JII
	JLCD
	JLCD-R


	Action Items
	Resolution NO. 21-04 Define "actively Engaged" for 2020-2021
	Bright Start and LCSD Lease

	Oversight Calendar
	District Preparedness




